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Espionage 

Washington Post 15 March 

Were There Other 
For a 'Rogue Operation,' the Israelis Sure Asked Good Questions 

By Lally Weymouth 

A S THEY REVIEW the case of con­
victed Israeli spy Jonathan Jay Pol­
lard, Justice Department officials are 

asking a troubling question: Is it possible that 
there are other Israeli spies-other Pollards, 
in other words-who helped frame the ques­
tions that the Israelis put to Pollard himself? 

been involved in the Pollard affair immunity 
from prosecution in return for cooperation. 
The three were Rafael Eitan, a former Mos­
sad operative who headed the "Lekem" in­
telligence unit that allegedly recruited Pol­
lard; Joseph Yagur, the science attache at the 
Israeli consulate in New York who is said to 
have obtained many of the d,ocuments from 
Pollard; and Irit Erb, a secretary at the Is­
raeli Embassy in Washington who allegedly 
copied the documents. This question arises because of a little-no­

ticed aspect of the case, the "tasking" of Pol­
lard by his Israeli handlers. According to sev- D uring the meetings with the three Is-
eral U.S. government sources, Pollard has raelis and their lawyers, the Ameri-
told Justice Department investigators that cans were told that a "Mr. X," whose 
w~en the Israelis initially recruited him, they name the Israelis refused to divulge, had in­
showed him copies of highly classified U.S. troduced Pollard to Lekem. The role played 
intelligence they already possessed and asked by Mr. X, the Israelis said, had been only a 
him to obtain additional material that was minor one. The three Israelis involved in the 
even more secret and sensitive. affair didn't name Mr. X or elaborate upon 

To American officials, this tasking episode his role-despite urgings by the Americans 

l raised the possibility that the Israelis alread to be candid. 

the time they recruited Pollard. But when colonel named Aviem Sella. For when Pollard 
had another spy in the U.S. government atl Mr. X turned out to be an Israeli air force 

• American investigators asked Israeli officials eventually began to cooperate, he told U.S. 
how they obtained the sensitive material investigators that his first contact with Israeli 
used to task Pollard, the Israelis refused to l ·ntelligence-his first "handler" as the court 
answer. The Americans were furious. documents say-had been Sella. An Israeli 

Explains U.S. Attorney Joseph E. di- war hero Sella led Israel's air strike on the 
Genova: "Direct and circumstantial evidence Iraqi nucl~ar reactor and helped decimate the 
indicates that we should be concerned as a Syrian air force during Israel's war in Leb­
:ovemment about how Jonathan Pollard was anon. He was thought to be destined for ~hief 
riginally tasked before he ever gave over in- of the Air Force and even possibly chief of 
>rmation. What did they show him when staff one day. . 
":ley tasked him?" The prosecutor wants to Sella's charmed life began to change m 
·now if there are other Pollards who have 1984 when he came to New York to take a 
.enetr~t~d U.S.. intellig_e~ce and, i! not, ~ho computer science course at _New York Uni­
• prov1dmg such class1f1ed material outside versity. While doing his studies, he got a call 
1fficial channels. from an American acquaintance saying that a 

The Americans who investigated the case 
-iy that they played straight with the Israelis 

1t that the Israelis didn't J~lay straight with 
.em. "It apparently never occurred to any­
.1e in Israel that the U.S. had a will to deal 
rith espionage, no matter who was the per­
etrator," says prosecutor diGenova. 

The investigators' anger over the case 
stems partly from a trip to Israel in Decem­
,er 1985 by diGenova, State Department Le­
ia! Advisor Abraham D. Sofaer and Mark 
Uchard of the Justice Department. They of­
ired the ·thre~Jsraelis then said to have 

ally Weymouth writes regularly about 
reign affairs for The Washington Post. 

friend named Jonathan Pollard wanted to 
meet him according to court documents. 
The meeting took place in the early 1984 in 
Washington, where Pollard was employed by 
the U.S. Navy as an intelligence analyst. Ac­
:::ording to the court documents, Pollard t?ld 
Selfa he wanted to work covertly to provide 
intelligence information to Israel that he had 
access to in his work. 

They met again later at the Dumbarton 
Oaks estate in Georgetown, with Pollard 
bringing a suitcase full o( classified docu­
ments to show Sella. According to court pa­
pers, "Sella then described other particular 
technical information which would be of pri-

' mary interest to Israel and stressed that de-. .. .. . . . 
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\ fendant should ootam • 1 op ::,ecret' docu­
' ments " according to the court record. 
• On~ question that intrigues A~erican. of­
ficials is how Sella got involved m the first 
place? Was he pushed into the operat!on by 
other Israeli military or intelligence officers? 

Evidence that Sella was following orders 
from much higher up in the Israeli chain o~ 
command comes from several Israeli 
sources. . 

According to one usually reliable Israeli, a 
senior Israeli Air Force officer has told col­
leagues that Sella was acting on his orders, 
with the knowledge of a top-level military of­
ficial. This source says that Sella was ordered 
to establish contact between Pollard and rep­
resentatives of Lekem, the intelligence 
branch headed by Rafael Eitan. 

Another sign that Sella was following- or­
ders is the reaction of other Israeli Air Force 
officers to the case. Recently, 22 of them 
went to Minister of Defense Yitzhak Rabin's 
office to declare their support for Sella and to 
endorse his promotion to become command­
er of Tel Nof air base-a step the Americans 
regard as a direct slap in the face. ~ccording 
to one Israeli journalist, t~~ offtce~s told 
Rabin they are tired of the mi~ary taking the 
rap for mistakes made at the political level. 

Rabin not wanting to offend either the 
America~s by promoting Sella or his officers 
by not promoting him, split the difference by 
giving Sella command of Tel Nof but denying 
him a promotion to brigadier general. 

T 
he official Israeli position continues to 
be that the Pollard recruitment was a 
rogue operation run by Eitan and not 

authorized by the top levels of the govern­
ment of Israel. 

But diGenova argues that "the description 
of this as a rogue operation is in conflict with 
the facts on the public record." Although he 
admits it is impossible to pinpoint the exact 
level of official Israeli authorization, he says 
that "it's clear it was authorired by some high 
authority because of the extensive amount of 
infonnation and the distribution of that infor• 
mation." 

Noting that the operation was scheduled to 
last for 10 more years-had it not been dis­
covered-diGenova concludes: "It had to be 

CONTINUED NEXT PAGE 
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Israel: 
Old Ally, 
Old Snoop 
By James Bamford 

CAMBRIDGE. MASS. 

C hristine Esfandiari did not know 
what to do. Anne, her next door 
neighbor, had just handed her .a 

wedding album and asked her to keep it 
safe. Now Anne was imploring her to help 
get rid of a suitcase hidden under the s~r 
of their Washington apartment building . . 
The young woman pleaded with her. to 

. retrieve the case and meet at the Four 
Seasons Hotel. A short while later Esfan­
diari's husband brought the heavy case to 
the apartment but, after a sleepless night, 
decided to call Navy investigators. 

Inside the suitcase was a pile of wrin­
kled documents bearing an assortment of 
red classification stamps ranging from 
secret to top-secret code words. This was 
only afraction of the mountain of defense 
secrets Jonathan Jay Pollard and his wife, 
Anne Henderson-Pollard, had sold to the 
government of Israel-roughly, 864,000 
pages total. According to Joseph E. di 
Genova, the U.S. attorney who prosecuted 
the case, the Pollards had "compromised 
the most documents ever." 

That the nation's record for spying 
would be achieved not by the Soviet KGB 
but ar, ally working through a· religious 
zealot is both disturbing and frightening. 
Especially so, given Israel'~ continui.ng 
cover-up of its involvement m the espio­
nage operation. Nevertheless, from a 
historical perspective, these incidents are 
only the latest 'in a series of actions 
against the United States by Israel. 

W. Raymond Wannall, who ran the 
Middle East desk of the FBl's intelligence 
division in the late 1940s and early 1950s, 
remembers that even then the Israelis 
"were very extensively involved in gath­
ering information of a classified na~ure in 
this country." Nonetheless, he sa.id, the 
Justice Department decided not to prose­
cute. Wannall, who retired in 1976 as 
assistant FBI director in charge of intelli­
gence, called the Israeli spy network 

James Bamford, author of ' he Puzzle 
Palace," an analysis of the NatiO';Ull Securi­
ty .Agency, writes about tnteUigetLCe issues1 • 
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.. 'very organized," run by a secret four­
man panel, "One of the members of the 
board was at the United Nations, a second 
was at the Israeli Embassy in Washing­
ton, a third was a prominent industrialist 
in New York City and a ·fourth was a 
trouble-shooter who came back and forth 
from Israel." 

In 1979, the Central Intelligence Agen­
cy produced a secret, h.ighly resti:tc~ed 
report on Israeli intelhgence activi~y, 
"Israel: Foreign Intelligence and Secunty. 
Services." The report has been cited in 
the media but the CIA refuses to confirm 
or deny its sponsorship. The study reflects 
a long-standing resentment and distrust 
within the CIA. This view, shared by 
many in the agency, in part stems from a 
widespread agency belief that Israel's 
military and intelligence services can 
commit any action without being held to 
account. 

The report would suggest that the 
Israeli government has long viewed the 
United States as an adversary to be 
subverted rather than as a friend and 
patron. Among friendly countries, there 
has always been a gentleman's agreement 
that passive, non-intrusive espionage­
such as by satellite-is permissible. For 
example, the United States has for years 
eavesdropped on British diplomatic com­
munications and the British no doubt 
reciprocate. 

Off-limits, however, is active spying, 
such as planting a mole in the friend's 
inte.lligence service or enticing a govern­
ment employee to commit treason. Yet 
this IS precisely what Israel has done. The 
CIA report claims that the United States 
ranks just below the Arab states on 
Israel's list of priority targets. 

But most troublesome, according to the 
CIA study, is Israel's use of dual loyalty as 
a tool for espionage, as in the Pollard case. 
Despite a reported ban on the recruitment 
of foreign Jews for espionage, "The 
Israelis," says the CIA report, "are pre-
pared to capitalize on nearly every kind of 

the various Jewish communities and or­
ganizations abroad for recruiting agents 
and eliciting general information. The 
aggressively ideological nature of Zion­
ism, which emphasizes that all Jews 
belong to Israel and must return to Israel, 
had had its drawbacks in enlisting support 
for intelligence operations, however, 
.since there is considerable opposition to 
Zionism among Jews throughout the 
world. Aware of this fact, Israeli intelli­
gence representatives . usually ope~~te 
discreetly, within Jew1Sh communiti~s 
and are under instructions to handle their 
missions with utmost tact to avo_id embar- · 
rassment to Israel. They also attempt to 
penetrate anti-Zionist elements in order 
to neutralize the opposition. Despite such • 
precautions, the Israelis frequently expe­
rience setbacks and there have been 
several cases where attempts at recruit­
ment of Americans of the Jewish faith 
have been rejected and reported to U.S. 
authorities." 

Perhaps the 1979 CIA had its own 
prejudices but since the Pollards' arrest 

• 1ast November, Israel has done little to 
counteract agency beliefs. On the one 
hand Israelis say the affair was an 
unsanctioned "rogue" operation, that 
those responsible will be "brought to 
account " that they will "spare no effort to 
investigate this case." Yet, the Israelis 
awarded those responsible with promo­
tions, lied to the U.S. Justice Department 
and covered up the involvement of Pol­
lard's principal handler. Finally, la~t 
week, Prime Minister Yitzhak Shamir 
reluctantly appointed a two-man panel to 
investigate the Pollard case. 

The time is overdue for the Reagan 
Administration and Congress to consider 
calling in Israel's credit cards and begin a 
realistic reassessment of America's rela­
tionship in the Middle East. [ 

agent motivation. A substantial effort is ---------------­
made to appeal to Jewish racial or 
religious proclivities, pro-Zionism, dislike 
of anti-Semitism ... blackmail is also 
used. Other recruiting techniques include 
the proffer of money." In addition, "Mos­
sad [Israel's CIA] over the years has 
ertjoyed some rapport with highly placed 
persons and government offices in every 
country of importance to Israel. Within 
Jewish communities in almost every 
country of the world, there are Zionists 
and other sympathizers, who render 
strong support to the Israeli intelligence 
effort. Such contacts are carefully nur­
tured and serve as channels for informa -
lion, deception material, propaganda and 
other purposes." 

The report goes further, "The Israeli 
intelligence service depends heavilr on 
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Other Pollards ... CONTINUED 
known and authonzeo at 1eve1s aoove the o: 
erational level This was not a rogue operatio. 
a couple of people running amok:' • 

One Israeli politician says "th'e • cheape 
way out for Israel will be if the two-memb 
commission appointed last week to investiga• 
the matter decides to make Eitan and Sella th 
fall guys. "The best thing," he concluded, •~st, 
make a credible report and then draw upon ~t 

bank balance (of American good will)." 
Perhaps so. But it may take longer than the 

Israeli government imagines to heal the dam 
age caused by what Israel's leading defenS( 
correspondent, Ze'ev Schiff, calls "the wors 
blunder I remember since I started my wor' 
here." • 
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Inner Cabinet Accepts Rotenstreidt-Tzar Report 
T A.270439 Jenualem Domatk Service ,,. E111luli 
0400 GMT 27 May 87 

[Text] The aovcmment is to meet in apecial aeaaion this mornina 
to debate the Rotenatreich-Tzur report on the Jonathan Pollard 
spy cue. The IO-man Inner Cabinet diacuued the report last 
nipt and decided that, u the committee's findinp lay reaponai­
bility collectively on the ,ovemment, the full Cabinet should be 
ubd to approve the document. More detailt in this report from 
Steve Weizman: 

(Beain rec:ordin,)[Woizman] In a aeuion lastina until well after 
midniaht, memben of the Inner Cabinet discuued the Roten• 
streich report, which blamea the politicians u a whole for the 
event, surroundiq the Pollard operation. Finally, Cabinet Sec­
retary Blyaqim Rubinatein read this statement to the waitina 
joumaliat,: 

[Rubinatein] The [Inner] Cabinet decided: 1) to publish the 
statement prepared for publication by the investiaation commis­
sion; 2) to recommend to the aovernment to be convened tomor­
row to adopt the recommendations of the inveatiaation 
c:ommiuion. Thank you very much. 

[W eizman] The document itself - or at lout the part of it made 
public - critici7.ca former intelliaenc:e chief Rafi Bytan for not 
reportina to ministen on the activitiea of hia Scientific Liaison 
Bureau [SLB) which recruited Pollard to spy for Israel in the 
United States. It a!IO said Bytan's later appointment, after the 
Pollard affair came to liaht. u head of Israel Chemical lndustriea 
showed inadequate aemitivity. The report also dcacribes as 
unreasonable the behavior of Pollard's handler, Air Force Colo­
nel Avi'em Sela'. 

Ultimately, the investiptina committee decided that the buck 
stops at the aovemment level and, althoqh aatisfied that neither 
Moehe Arens nor Yitzhaq Rabin u ministen of defense knew of 
the Pollard project WI.ti! it became public, it says they bear 
responsibility for the activity of their subordinates and failed to 
carry out periodic checb and rcu1eument1 neceuary to keep 
the SLB under control. It allo blamed the PRICDt and former 
prime ministen - Shamir, Rabin, and Perea - for not 
respondiq properly when the affair came to liaht, The three 
actina u one, the report saya, took inlufficient 1tepa to diacover 
all the facta, with the reault that followina the decision to 
cooperate with Wubiqtoa in investiaatins the cue, incomplete 
information wu puaed to the United States, raultina in the lou 
of credibility for hrael. 

All this was accepted by the three. who said they would advise 
the full Cabinet to do likewile. Perea, who wu prime minilter 
when Pollard was uncovered by U.S. apnt,, aaid he took full 
reaponsibility for hia actiom, which he rqarded u havina been 
correct. He made it clear that he rqarded the Rotemtreich 
investiaation u the only meaninaful probe into the affair. The 
Kncuet subcommittee of Abba Bban, he aaid, was rendered 
invalid by it, political nature. Yitzhaq Rabin echoed Perea' 
comments: 

11 

(Rabin] I believe it is a political committee, and palitical consid­
erations were in their mind. Thia is my simple answer to whatever 
they said. 

(Weizman] The report is to be presented to the full Cabinet in a 
little over an hour from now-. Aa durina the Inner Cabinet 
meetina, there are likely to be araumenu between ministers, but 
it is aenerally expected that deapite that the aovemment will 
follow the Inner Cabinet recommcndationa and adopt the 
Rotemtreich report. [end recordina] 

FIIII Caltlaet Approt'a) 
T A.270855 Ttl Aviv IDF Radio tn Htbnw 
0830 GMT 27 May 87 

[Text) The Cabinet decided to accept last niaht'a Inner Cabinet 
recommendation to adept the Rotenatmch-Tzur report on the 
Pollard affair. Thia decilion was reached apinst the oppoeition 
of Minilten Levi, Moda'i, and Ya'aqobi, and with the abltention 
of four ministen. We will now hear Cabinet Secretary Blyaqim 
Rubinltein read the Cabinet dec:ilion: 

(Boain rccordina) [Rubinstein) The Cabinet met in the 
framework of the ministerial committee on security affairs to 
diacuaa the fact-findina committee's report on the Pollard cue, 
and decided to approve last niaht's Inner Cabinet decilion. 

[Unidentified correapondent) What is the meaniq of this deci­
sion, Mr Rubinltoin? 

[Rubinltein] Al is known, last nipt the Inner Cabinet decided 
to recommend that the Cabinet adopt the fact-findina commit­
tee'• recommendatiolll, and the decilion means that the Cabinet 
approved this recommendation. 

[Correapondent) Why were the miniaten not permitted to read 
the actual report? 

[Rubinltein] Al far u I know, the miniatcra may read tho report. 

[Correspondent) But some of the Cabinet ministen bear respon• 
sibility without even knowina what the final report states. 

[Rubinltein) I do not think that the Cabinet decision should be 
interpreted in auch a manner. I think that the decision, which wu 
reached by a Iarae majority, reflect, the aeneral Wldmtandina 
of the miniaten, who supported it. Thia is the Cabinet decision 
u it stands. • ' 

[Correspondent) Mr Rubinltein, why wu it not atated simply that 
the Cabinet approves the Rotenatreich report and bean reapon­
sibility for the Pollard affair? 

(Rubinatein] I think that what was stated is self-explanatory -
that is, in view of the fact that the Inner Cabinet recommended 
that the Cabinet adopt theconclusiona and that theae conclUliona 
have been made public, the mcanina of the decision is clear. [end 
recordina] 

I 
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The Cabinet ministers were not permitted to read the claaaificd 
portion of the report, but it wu aarecd that followina the Cabinet 
mcctina the report would be placed in the Cabinet Secretariat, 
and only there will the miniatcn be permitted to read the 
cluaified part. 

EINln Reports Collllllittee Fladinp to Kneuet 
T A162100 Ttl Aviv IDF Radio tn Hebrew 
1946 GMT 26 May 87 

[Statement by Kneaet Member Abba Eban upon the publication 
of the Eban Committee findinp into the Pollard affair, at the 
Kneuct - live, broadcut in pro,raa] 

[Text) ... of the Forcip Affairs and Defcme Committee. By the 
way, I am not aurprited that you prefer the 10mcwhat pretcntiout 
name I UBe, the Eban Committee, when the alternative ia 111hia 
the full name of thia aubcommittee. Deputy Chairman Kneuet 
Member [MK] Mikha Hariah, MK David Maacn, and MK Ehud 
Olmcrt, toacther with me repraent here the majority of the 
subcommittee. I want to respond to queationl, but I will try to 
review briefly the contenta of the report, which we concluded 
today followina 10 wecb of onaoina efforta. Durina theae 2 and 
1 /2 months, we have accumulated tho111anda of paaca and hun­
dredl of houn of work, and it ia impouible for all thia work to be 
reflected in the alim report we are praentina to you. 

The first comment ii that thia report is an open report. Behind it 
there is a aecret report in which there is a IJ'Clt amount of 
knowledac and information about the operation of the intcl­
lipnce 1y1tcma. I hope that within a week or two we will complete 
the preparation of the aecrct report. Howover, it will be praented 
only for the pcr111&l of the heads of the intelliaence and aecurity 
aervica, and alto to the three miniaten wbo control theac 1ya­
tem1. I will limit my rcmarb to the contcntl and mcaninc of the 
open report, which ia published today. 

Fint a note on thia phenomenon: Thia ii actually the r1r1t time 
that a parliamentary aubcommittee hu taken upon itaelf the 
initiative to cumine, clarify and aum 11p an iaaue that ia under 
internal controvcny and hu far-readlina external ramif'acationa. 
Let me tell you frankly that then were many who doubted - on 
the bui, of the ltructurc of the braeli 1yatem - whether MK'• 
could free thCD11elvea from certain linb- partilan and political 
- in order to make decuiona while iporina to a certain extent 
that they arc under 1ubordinate. I have novcr ipored the weiaht 
of these apprehensions. I think, howovcr, that we ace here the 
ability to rise above and free oneself from the kind of subordina­
tion which, from the nature of thinp, mipt have prevented the 
fulfillment of the rolea of criticism and 1uperviaion by MK'a in 
Israel. Second, we have reached a unified report. It is true that 
there were aoveral reacrvationa and suueations to add certain 
information. In certain places there were oven differences of 
opinion, and thil is clearly reflected in theae paaea. However, on 
the iireat majority of isauca, six MK's who arc in Israel -
naturally I wish succaa and a Iona life to our colleapc Dr Buri, 
whose travels from Frankfurt to Budapeat. Zurich, Madrid, 
Buenos Aires, and San Paulo I have followed with interest -
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took upon ounclvea this job. Allo, we did not need to decide upon 
isauea on the basis of one vote. 

I want to open with the findina I beliove to be the central one, 
especially, porhapa, in the eyea of the viowen, lilteacn, and 
readers abroad. Let met read thia cla111e: We have inveatipted 
the buic iaaue of whether the political echelon did not know, and 
foUowina a moet thoroqh inveatiption and evaa cwery effort to 
rmd information that mipt contradict the UIUDlption - aft« 
all, the importance and fatefalnea of this anDOllllCelllelt ii clear 
in tcrmJ of our international relations and the public imaae of 
Israel - here are our concluiou. All the evidence bn,qht to 
the committee by all the wit11 •• oonccrned with the matter 
indeed confirm beyond any doubt the conchalion that the oper­
ational levels - that ia, the Science Liailoa Bureau (SLB] headed 
by Rafi Eytan - decided on the recruitmmt and bandlina m 
Pollard without any checkina, eomultationa, or receivin, author­
ity directly or indirectly from the political echelon. In my opinion 
this announcement, that the political echelon did not know about 
this operation, directly or indirectly, ii the buia for under­
atandina all the other cla111m. 

Novertheleu we 1hould move to a claUIC which balanc:el the 
imprmion of thia IIIDOWKlCIDellt. Here we have for the fint time, 
by the way, an independent inatit11tion which came in contact 
with varioua elementa who auppaaedly had an interest in proyina 
that the political echelon knew about thia matter, becaUIC if tbia 
were the caac, they - the ltate employee■ - would haft been 
freed from all lUIPic:iom. I believe and hope that tbia rmdina will 
receive publicity. However, doe, thia mean that tbia wu a 
ao-c:allcd unauthorized operation, what ii known in Enalilh u a 
rope operation [lut two wonk in Eqlilh]? The committee 
ltatcl unequivocally that tbia WU not a ftllllC operation. Dllpite 
the fact that thole who carry the political respomibility did not 
know and did not aivc permiuion - their permilaion was not 
oven asked for - newrtheleu thole who headed thia operation 
were not ordinary citiunl; they were 1tate employcee who are 
aubject to the Iaraeli adminiatl'lltion, or to be more prec:uo, to the 
defeme catablilhment. They made all the arranpments, they did 
all the tnvelina, and they held all the CODtacta and dcbriefinp. 
They med the atate funda at their cliapoaa1. 11leae people carried 
the operation under the command of Rafi EYtaD. and this meana 
that even thoqh the docidina political ecbelon wu .-copiunt 
of the affair, neverthelea hrael canaot ■hab off the rell)Olllibil­
ity. We therefore recommend that hrael unounce the followina: 

I will read the claue: Delpite the lack of any miniaterial 
lcnowledae or approval for the operation, the pcnunent would 
be wise to ■tate unequivocally that the State of larael admita itl 
responaibility and will continue to act to correct the damqa, 
becaUIC IODle of ita employee■ were inwlved in this operation. 

It ii true that thia ii only a recommendation, bat in another claUIC 
of the report we expreu re,ret that lllch a reaction .. ,chana• 
thou,ht] Thia should have been, to the committee'• mind, the 
immediate reaction to the critia after it became clear that Pollard 
wu beina operated. However, it ia not too late, and thia ii our 
recommendation. 

The word reapomibility ii the 1ipificant word here. Perhaps the 
lack of this word in Isracl'a initial reaction, when it wu still in a 
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state of shock, pcrbapa the ablcnc:c of thil word IUUlCCClllrily 
exacerbated the tension. 

Now we come to the pmon who took it upon humclf to conduct 
this operation. The committee takes a srave view of Rafi Eytan, 
while notin, hil achievementa and coatriblatioo to llrael'1 aecu­
rity, without any attempt to erue the alory of hil put operatiou. 
With all thil in mind, we ,tate that in thil cue tha'e wu an 
enormous dmation from all authority. We have here a 1pectade 
of a state employee, without the permiuion of the miniater above 
him or any other echelon, who coaducta thia operation. travela 
internationally, and manaaa and financ:ea thil complicated 
opctJUOII to tho point of entaqliq hil COUDtry in a srave criail 
involvin, the focal point of ill foreip relations. In another plac:e 
in the report the committee a:prmea ill reap'Ct that, duriq a 
very scnaime and delicate ataae of our dialope with the United 
Statea, Eytan'1 poaition WU not taken into comidcration, to put 
it mildly: We exprca rearet that nobody bad the couraae to 
puniah him after hil reapomibility wu llllCCWenld. However, we 
are not makin, any rccommondatiom at thil point. 

Another prominent fipre in thil drama ii Colonel Avi'em Sela' 
- apin, an llrae1i hero, aiYCD hil contriblation to our aviation 
systema. However, dapite OW' acknowledpment of thole virtu•, 
we exprca rearet for the very fact that an Air Force officer wu 
involved in an area remote from hil area of a:pertiac or the (ICld 
with which he wu acquainted. We rearct that ho humclf failed 
to do enouah to cut himlelf off from thil irreplar arena where, 
much u one may be brilliant in one area. hil lack of brilliance 
and re10Urcefulnea in a totally diffenmt area atanda ollt. A brave 
and brilliant pilot, commaader, and r.,bter be may be, yet he ii 
no succeu story - indeed. why lhould he be a IUCCCII 1tory? -
in this arena of intelliaeoce. So we were diaplcued with hil 
performance in thil aphere and were likewiae unhappy that he 
wu sent out on several millm for which - he mut be duly 
credited - he 10uaht ancl obtained permiaion. Here we oxprm 
the hope that thole WhOIC permiuion he needed to have - mainly 
the commander of the Air Force and the chief of 1taff - will in 
the future, in prin<:iple, mue to allow military ofTac:en to be 
involved in thil area. We applaud Defeme Miniater Rabin'• 
aMouncement that he baa already readied thil coaclllliml, and 
WC welcome hil 8DDOllJ1CClllClt that in the future IDF officen 
from all the branchea will not be allowed to become invoival in 
activiti• outaido the IDF1 purriew - 1lll1ml, of coune, they 
obtain clear licemc not from military commanden bat from the 
defeme miniltor. That ii to aay, • here we aw very viaoroua. 
unauthorized activity by cml ICIYUIII, two of whom I mentioned. 
I must u.nfortuately be comiltent ancl 1tate that the kind of 
supcrvilory mecbanilm that would have been called for from the 
Defenae Minutry, .. rticularly from ill then director pneral, did 
not function and no supervision wu carried out. Supervilory 
bodies did mt, u did committeea. blat they were not active. Had 
they operated, one could aafely aawne that tbeae control com­
mittees would have enliahtened the Defeme Minutry directorate 
and the minuter humclf about the exiatcnco of activity that 
should have been seen u irreplar. Aaain. that activity did take 
place free of any superviaion, follow-up, or control, with nobody 
tcllina people what to do or aivina them directiom u to where 
they wen:: headina, or what their chief miuiom 1hould be. 
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Now we finally 1ct to two questiona. In view of our certainty that 
the operation was carried out by civil servantl, what does thil. 
mean in tcrma of the reaponsibility of miniaten, Cabinet mem­
ben? Accordina to the prevafilna doctrine in Israel. u formu­
lated by, amona othcn, the honorable Juatic:e A,ranat in 1973, 
ianorance caMot be taken u an excuae to relieve the political 
echelon of ill respomibility for operatiom carried out without ita 
knowledae. The lope behind thil ii that the miniater m111t 
eatablish a climate or atmoaphere, by way of directiva u well u 
standina orders, that mate it clear to all hil 1ubordinatc1 that 
they muat report to the political echelon and the miniater himlelf 
and never uaume that they have lic:enac to carry out such 
mialiou, undertake exceum initiame, or be preaumptUOUI in 
cvaluatina the raqe of pcrmiaible initiative. Beaidea, even in the 
absence of written directives, common acme would have required 
that a penon dealiq in acmitive and delicate matten refrain 
from enaaaina in them without conaultina with the miniater. In 
other words, there exiatl a certain 1tratwn compriaiaa extremely 
talented - occuionally even moat brilliant - civil aenanta who 
believe that the political echelon lhould not be bothcnd, and they 
thereby uawne too much. We hope that thecritidam IMed hen:: 
at thil phenomenon will be acknowledaed by the entire adminia­
trative system in hrael; hence the central complaint about min­
isters, particularly the two defeme miniaten who aerved duriq 
the time that Pollud wu active. 

Actually, the chief complaint ii that, their iporancc notwith­
standina, they should have implemented 1uperviaory control ancl 
follow-up procedures and evinced peater curiolity, utiq from 
time to time what thia or that peraon wu doins - partic:ularly 
when confronted with a man like Rafi Eytan who ii raourceflll 
and very brillianL A miniater should aawne that it ii precisely 
brilliant, resourceful people who could be a rilk, thereby juatify­
in1 extra alertncu. u leu shinina people miaht be leu ca.-ble 
of pattina themaelves and othen in jeopardy by aoiJ11 overboard 
in such a fuhion. Thu, first of all with reaard to Defeme 
Minuter Arena, durina whose term Pollud bcpn to be active 
under the pidanc:e of Rafi Eytan, and later Minilter Yitzbaq 
Rabin, who for 15 montha allowed this phenomCIIOII of Pollard 
to continue without his knowledae, the committee 1tate1 that, bad 
they implemented the appropriate and adequate 1upemaory 
means u well u a meuure of nauinl curiolity, it would have 
been pouible for them to know. Thia ii stated with reference to 
Minuter Rabin and the activation of Pollard. Certainly had he 
known, he would no doubt have taken the neceaary action 
rcaardin1 the operation, the rule beina that the members of the 
political echelon occuionally stated in their appearaaces before 
ua: Certainly if I bad known, I would have stopped thil; I would 
have put an end to it. Therefore. the lack of knowledae wu really 
one of the reasons for the complication. We comequently noted 
that minilterial responsibility applies to Minister Arena with 
respect to his term, and to Minister Rabin with rapect to hil 
term. 

I must say that parliamentary responsibility, of 00W'IC, meana 
that the responsibility actually filten upward and enda in fact at 
the top. Incidentally, howcvor, thil does not ncceuarily require 
any concluaion to be drawn; and whether or not conclusiom are 
drawn, this no d01&bt does not depend on our committee and ii 
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not somethin1 that ii done automatically. It depends on the 
people themselves, the Kneact, and the political 1yatem. 

I will therefore preempt you and would like to answer a question 
you have as yet bad no time to uk because I have not let you do 
10, a question which bu nonethelea1 been 10 frequently railed: 
A rather stran1e atmolphere prevailed in hrael u rcprda the 
work of the subcommittee. I have aeen a collection of caricatures 
and for l week I bad the honor of featuriq in the imqe of an 
executioner operatin1 the 1uillotine. The next day I wu ahown 
standin1 by the pllowa. Thia JllOl1WII IIOllleone portrayed me 
side by side with a kind of weapon that c:atapults rocb and 
shatters thin1s, implyin1 that the inveatiaation of the committee 
ii almost an act of war, knockina people over. Thia baa no 
juatification whatsoever, and thia ia not the kind of power either 
a parliamentary or any other committee hu. In one article we 
emphasized in no uncertain terma that our committee ii not a 
le,al committee and conaequently cannot act leaa) proccdurc1 or 
nol'DII in motion. It therefore hu no intention of puaiq penonal 
jud1ment on any penon, be he a civil aervant or a member of the 
political echelon; furthermore, it ii devoid of the power to do 10. 
We do not determine the fates of people. Thia is not our job and 
we are unauthorized to do 10. I am afraid that I have juat caused 
many of the other caricaturiats, who arantod tbia notion of a 
fact-findin, committee [va'adat bediqa] a certain macabre aura, 
some disappointment Only the Kneuet can deal with such 
thinp, and I have never heard in the annala of any nation that a 
subcommittee, respectable thou1h it may be, can make or break 
,ovemments. 

[Replyina to an interjection by an unidcnfied speaker, who ■ays: 
That may not be a bad idea!] I muat have tempted my collea1ue 
here to express himaelf. No, under no circwnatancea. This is a 
totally different iaaue. 

The last article I will address reprds the period that followed 
the exposure and arrest of Pollard. Here, of coune, the period of 
lack of knowled1e ended and the political echelon atarted actina, 
Here we experienced an internal diapute in the committee, which 
I assume wu alao reflected in tho country u a whole: My 
colleapea and I actually ■aw fit to praise the activity of the 
political echelon at the initial 1ta1e of thia period, u the buic 
re■olution wu first of all to rehabilitate relations with the United 
States and reach an undentandina with it. Thia wu the backdrop 
for U.S. miaaiona in hrael and contact& between the three senior 
ministers with U.S. Secretary of State Mr Shultz on all levela, 
followed by commitments to cooperate, pull back miuilea, call to 
account [laat three words in Eqliah] all thole involved, and 
dismantle the unit that included 10me people involved in this 
issue. My collea1ues and I think that thia activity wu not only 
positive, but almost crowned with 111cc:eaa, and that relations of 
faith and trust were truly reestablished. For months it seemed as 
thou1h the tension had evaporated, until the fire rekindled. But 
this is not to say that the initial action wu umucceuful. So why 
did it i,nite once more? Becauae an error was committed that 
actually weakened Israel's credibility, particularly as Colonel 
Sela' was never called to account and there wu even talk about 
promotin1 him in rank and in poeition. Those of us who visited 
the United States could aee how thia rather unimpressive match· 
sparked off a fire of areat eitcitement. 

ISRAEL 

There were other phenomena, which are outlined in the report, 
that caused U.S. an1er, which seemed to have 1ublidcd, then 
rekindled. There were several tactical and operational mishaps. 
In public speeches the imprea1ion wu created that larael did not 
re1ard the U.S. issue too aerioualy. We obvioualy paid for thac 
mistake&. We note, however, that at the end of the procca buic 
relations with the United States have not been harmed and we 
are on the path of recovery. However, we noted the miata.tel. One 
of them, as I have ■aid, wu the promotion of Sela'. There were 
othen: the fact that Rafi Eytan'1 operation wu not iJmsti. 
sated, and u a result ofthia hraeli repraentativa PYC •tranae 
testimonies, stemmin1 from a lack of knowledp. And what do 
we have to say about the issue of reaponaibility here? Since the 
thne miniatm have announced that they conaidcr themaelvea a 
team and that there is ,reat 10lidarity, we uy thia- and people 
■ay that perhaps there ia IIOlllethina new here - we do not apeak 
about parliamentary [J)l'eQeCWII word in En,liab) rell)Olllibility 
for the miltaka; we apeak about parliamentary rapomibility for 
the deciaiom that were made. However, thia reaponaibility of the 
three ministers ia for the aood deciaiona u well u for thole that 
did not aw:ceed. We are ■ayiq that the three miniatera u a team 
are n:sponaible for these deciaiom, the poaitive deciaiona u well 
as thole that did not succeed. However, on the buia of the 
workinp of the Inner Cabinet, we are ayiq that, dcapitc thia 
bein1 a very ti1ht triumvirate, there ii De9Crthel• a oonccpt of 
firat amon1 equals, and aomeone who aervea u prime miniater 
carria more reaponaibility and authority for deciaiona. both aood 
and bad. I believe that I have expreued what my colleques and 
myaelfthink about the central iatues. At tbia point I am available 
for your queations. I a1ao hope that 10111C of my colleaau• will 
participate. [IDF Radio ends live coverqe) 

Peres lnteniewed on Committee Reports 
T A270624 Tel Aviv IDF Riulio In Hebnw 
0515GMT17 May87 

[Telephone interview with Shim'on Perea, vice prime miniater 
and forei1n minister, by Mikha Friedman and Ilana Dayan -
live) 

[Text) [Friedman] Vice Prime Miniater Shim'on Perea, aood 
mornina to you. 

[Perea] Good mornina. 

(Friedman] The Eban committee's statement that the prime 
minister is first amon1 equals and thus has arcater parliamentary 
responsibility in fact lays most of the burden of reaponaibility on 
your shouldm. 

[Perea] Responsibility for what? 

[Friedman] For an act or blunder concernin1 the Pollard affair. 
Are you prepared to bear this reaponaibility? 

[Peres) Just a moment, sir. You did not read the report. 

[Friedman] Y cs, so perhaps you could correct us. 
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[Peres) It lays responsibility on me as first amona equals only 
after the Pollard affair broke. 

[Friedman) And you are prepared to bear thi1 responsibility? 

[Peres) Definitely. 

[Dayan) When you say that you are prepared to bear responsibil­
ity - and you uid the ume several minutes after the Eban 
report wu releued - what substance do you attribute to thla 
responsibility? 

[Perea) To be a proper vice prime minlatcr. I do not think that 
Ehud Olmert and Eliyahu Ben-Eliaar understand how to handle 
the United States better than I do. They may think 10, and I may 
think differently. I bear areater responsibility, but they do not 
have areater wildom. In thia cue, we arc all more or leu equal. 
I think I acted correctly. I uaumc the responsibility, and I have 
no need to apoloaize. Of counc, I have my own qucation: Let 
111 aay that I am the fint amona equals; arc the other equals not 
equal? In this imtance, there wu an explicit partisan approach 
but I have no need - neither penonal nor parliamentary - to 
shirk one iota of my responaibility. I am cominced now, too, that 
I acted correctly and with political wisdom. and in my opinion I 
rescued the country from an extremely aravc and difficult sit­
uation. It would of coune be incorrect to say that this was very 
pleasant. I a1IO have another question to put to the parliamentary 
committee: They were, after all, party to all these decisions at 
the time. They arc not the public audit committee. Why did they 
not raise their voices apimt thia policy at the time? 

[Dayan) Did they know all the dctaill, Mr Peres? 

[Perea) I think they did. 

[Friedman] Mr Perea, yesterday you uid you are prepared to 
accept the recommendations of the Rotenatreich-Tzur commit­
tee which determined that the entire aovemment bean collective 
responsibility. There are people who do not undentand exactly 
how it is pouiblc that the transportation and reliaioua affairs 
ministers can be reaponaiblc to the same desrec u the defomo 
minister and the prime mini1ter. Thia calls for an explanation. 

[Perea) Everyone bean collective responsibility in a parliamen­
tary reaime- Thia is nothina new. 

[Friedman] But for this there wu no need to set up a committee. 

[Pera] When IOlllCthina happena in the a,ricultural aoctor, the 
entire aovemment also bean responsibility. The committee could 
have found that one individual bean more specific responsibility, 
but it did not do this. 

[Dayan) Mr Peres, do you believe that the responsibility aa 
assianed by both the Rotenstreicb and Eban committees will 
satisfy the Americans, for whom, after all, the committees were 
also established? 

[Perea] I do not think that we have to satisfy the Americana. I 
think: that we must satilf'y the truth. I only hope that the media 
will be precise in what was said. Here, you started off the momiq 
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by sayina that I am more responsible for the Pollard affair than 
others. This is completely untrue and was not stated by either of 
the two committees. 

[Friedman] Then we apolOlizc for that and retract it. 

[Peres] That ia very aood of you, but you muat ensure that your 
remarks are accurate in the future, because not only ministers 
but also jouma.lista and Kncuet membcn muat be very precise 
in such matters. 

[Friedman] We have no araument with that. 

[Perea] Alriaht. 

[Friedman]Withthercleueofthcreportsbythetwocommittea, 
do you consider the affair am? • 

[Pera] Yea. I think IO, There ii much malic:ioua joy, of COUJ'IC, 

and the matter will certainly continue to reverberate IOlllCWhat. 
A severe blunder occurred: the committee ub bow this mishap 
could have happened - both committees MY this. A, for myaelf, 
I repeat: I bear the entire reaponaibilitr, I am not al)Olosizina. 
and I have no resret,a. I think that the three Litud committee 
mcmben were biued when they aid that I did not tell the truth. 
How do they know what the truth wu? How do they know what 
I knew? 

[Dayan) The three Alipmcnt mcmbcn aid in response that you 
Mid what you knew at the time u had been reported to you. 

[Peres] Correct. I said what I knew at the time. How docs 
Bcn-Eliaar know what I knew or did not know? 

[Dayan] And in retrolpeCt, did it become clear to you that what 
you knew WU not the truth? 

[Perea] Not only did it become dear to me but to everyone, 
includiq the committee. They mention this; they aay that acvcral 
people were not very accurate. 

[Dayan] Do you know who wu not accurate in rcportiq to you? 

[Perea} I know exactly who wu not accurate; I defmitely know 
whoitwu. 

[Friedman] Mr Pera, let ua perhapa addrca one point which 
appears to 111 a matter of principle. The more moderate or let 111 
say balanced report by the Rotenltreicb-Tzur committee allo 
mentions the word blunder, which ii collectively attributed to the 
entire aovcnunenL h it comfortable liviq with thia feelina? 

[Peres] Of course not. But look, there are areu, in the field of 
communicati0111 for example, in which blunders occur. Blunders 
certainly occur in places, but there are also trcmcndoaa 
achievements I would like everythiq to be perfect. I am not 10 

sure that perfection it evident in any apberc of lite. 

[Friedman] And should politicianl be jwfaed by the public, u 
Rotemtreich and Tzur claim, in the event of a blunder? 
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(Peres] Not unleu they violated the law. I do not perceive any 
violation in thil cue. Say Mcun Ben-Eliaar, David Maaen, and 
Ehud Olmert believe the Americana should not have been aiven 
what was conveyed to them - that ii their riaht. Incidentally, 
Mr Shamir thouaht u I did; Rabin thouaht the aame; and the 
Inner Cabinet apprOYed thia. 

[Dayan] You arc rcferrina to the return of the documents? 

[Peres] Y •· When did they become 10 clever? Juat because they 
call thcmlelvcs a committee? 

(Dayan) Mr Perea, in tryiq to aummarize the last few hours and 
the committeea' report, and what you aaid, mainly about the 
Eban c:ommittee, do you perhaps think that thil committee'• 
findinp will ultimately C&IIIC damqe? 

[Pera] I am n« in the habit of handiq out aradca. I noticed that, 
accordiq to the media, there wu a dilpute within the committee 
up until the last moment. I have no idea what happened in the 
committee. Incidentally, here ii another story: The Likud 
membcn came out and aaid: We were not praaured. Durina 
thil entire period, I did not exchanae one word with Eban, for 
aood or bad, on thil matter. Thus, I do not need to hand out 
aradca. Thia is a parliamentary c:ommittee that will submit 
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its conclusions. I have not chanaed my c,pinion. I behaved cor­
rectly and, in my opinion, wisely and coura,eously. I auume that 
the three Lilrud memben have a areat deal of wildom. but they 
are also influenced by additional c:onsiderationa. That ii all. 

(Dayan] Mr Peres, we thank you very much. 

[Pera] All the best. 

USSR Said To Asne on Two Coafenace 0-U&. 
T A270418 Jmualtm Dotrw1tlc Swvice 111 Hdlnw 
0400 GMT 17 May 87 

(Text] The Soviet Union accepta the principle that an interna­
tional c:onference would not impale its will on larul and itl 
neiabbors and that the neac,tiatiom woald be conducted in a 
bilateral framework. Thia emerpd from oontacta at the United 
Nationa between Inaeli and Soviet repreaentativca. Our cor­
respondent in Wuhiqton reporta that the Sorieta made it clear 
that they reprd 1987 u the tarpt date for the convenina of the 
conference. The Soviet Union does not CODlider it eaential that 
the neaotiationa alao deal with a Paleatinian atato, but it imilta 
on the participation of a PLO repraeatation in the talb. 
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Rotenstreich-Tzur Committee Report Released 
TA281435 Jerusalem GOVERNMENT PRESS OFFICE 
in English 27 May 87 

["Report of the Rotenstreich-Tzur Committee on the Pollard 
Case; Communicated in English by the Prime Minister's Media 
Adviser" - GPO headline] 

[TextJOn the eleventh of Adar S747, 12 March 1987, the prime 
minister appointed the followina persons to serve as a two­
member investigation commission into the Pollard case. 

Following is the letter of appointment: 

Jerusalem 11th Adar 5747 
12th March 1987 

To Advocate Dr Yehoshu'a Rotenstreich 
Rav Aluf [Lieutenant General] (res) Tzvi Tzur 

Letter of Appointment [Subhead] 

A. On tenth Adar S747 (3.11.87) the Cabinet decided to appoint 
a two-member investigation commission into the Pollard case. 

B. In accordance with this decision I have the honor to appoint 
you with your consent, as an investigation commission into this 
subject. Dr Rotenstreich will serve as chairman of the commis­
sion. 

C. In pursuit of your mission, you are authorized to receive any 
information both oral and written deemed necessary in your 
judgment concerning this case and from any person you think fit. 

D. Your deliberations will be governed by the rules of secrecy 
pertaining to the preservation of the security of the state and its 
foreign relations. 

E. I would be grateful if you were to present your report to the 
government through me, as soon as possible, including any 
recommendations you deem fit. 

The Report [Subhead] 

Preamble 

Yours sincerely, 
Yitzhaq Shamir 

I. The commission held 35 sessions durina which it interviewed 
23 witnesses, several of whom were summoned several times to 
verify testimonies which had been given; in addition the commis­
sion held many meetings which were dedicated to internal discus­
sions of its members. The commission also talked to various 
persons with a view to benefiting from information in their 
possession. 

2. It should be emphasized that all the witnesses summoned by 
the commission appeared before it and, to the best of its 
knowledge, the testimonies given were complete. The commission 

examined many documents and received every document it 
requested. 

3. Whereas the matters considered by the commission touch upon 
the security of the state, the commission recommends that the 
report as a whole be classified "top secret" and that only the 
following part be released to the public. 

4. It should be recalled that several of those involved in this 
matter have been indicted in the U.S.A. whereas others are still 
subject to a process of annulling immunity granted to them. For 
this reason, and in order not to infringe upon the personal rights 
of those involved to protect their own interests, the commission 
has confined itself to this form of publishing its conclusions, and 
it asks the understanding of the public for this step it has taken. 

Extract of the Conclusions of the Investigation Commission for 
the Pollard Case [Subhead] 

5. The Pollard affair began in the first half of 1984 and ended 
towards the end of 1985. 

6. At that time the "Office of Scientific Liaison" (hereafter 
LEKEM), the organ responsible for recruiting and running Pol­
lard, was headed by Refa'el Eytan. 

7. The ministers of defense during that period were Mr M. Arens 
(from 2.24.83 to 9.13.84) and Mr Y. Rabin (as of September 
1984). 

8. After the arrest of Pollard, government activity in the matter 
was concentrated in the hands of then prime minister (S. Peres), 
the vice prime minister and minister of foreign affairs (Y. 
Shamir) and the minister of defense (Y. Rabin). 

9. The above three ministers appointed a professional team to 
handle contacts with U.S. authorities on the affair. The team 
reported to the same three ministers and acted on their instruc­
tions. 

Refa'el Eytan [Subhead] 

10. When Refa'el Eytan was appointed to his position as head of 
LEKEM, he already had a most commendable career in security 
affairs and a vast experience in the field of intelligence. 

11. Notwithstanding his claim that a part of the modus operandi 
of LEKEM was not to his liking, he did not act sufficiently to 
change the situation. 

12. In spite of the fact that he sometimes initiated meetings with 
the political level, he did not consult with the relevant ministers 
on the recruitment and running of Pollard. 

13. There was no room for the recruitment and running of 
Pollard. 

14. There is room for criticism of the way LEKEM was admin­
istered during that period. At the same time Refa'el Eytan 
served, for a part of the period, as adviser to the prime minister 
on terrorist affairs and also dealt with other matters. 



-- ·a. ,.. 

V. 29May87 

15. In the circumstances, the decision to dissolve LEKEM was 
correct. Refa'el Eytan was removed from the defense establish­
ment after many years of service. This is to be viewed as very 
severe punishment. 

16. The ministers who appointed Refa'el Eytan as chairman of 
the board of directors of Israel Chemicals Ltd, followin1 the 
dissolution of LEKEM and the release of Mr Eytan from the 
defense establishment, did not show adequate sensitivity con­
cerning the reverberations that this appointment might 1enerate 
against the bacqround of the affair. 

Colonel Avi'em Sela' [Subhead] 

17. The conduct of Colonel Avi'em Sela' was not reasonable 
during certain sta1es of the Pollard affair. His entan1lement was, 
in part, the result of an excessive initiative to be involved in the 
Pollard case. 

18. The pressures brought to bear on the chief of the General 
Staff and the minister of defense to promote Colonel Sela' and 
to appoint him commander of Tel Nof base, appear to us, and 
this is an understatement, unjustified. His resi1nation from this 
post, in view of the criticism that this appointment en1endered 
both in Israel and abroad, appears to us to have been correct. 

Responsibility of the Political Level Durin1 the Period Pollard 
Was Run [Subhead] 

19. Pollard was recruited and run durina the tenure of Minister 
M. Arens as minister of defense and continued to be run durina 
the tenure of minister Y. Rabin as minister of defense. The 
difference between the two is the leqth of their tenure durin1 
the period of the Pollard case. 

20. The two above ministers knew neither of the recruitment and 
running of Pollard, nor of the place of his employment and, 
obviously they were not asked to approve his recruitment. 

21. The oversight system of the Ministry of Defense over 
LEKEM operated in a most partial manner, and did not monitor 
its activities closely. 

22. Periodic checks and reassessments of the tar1ets of the tasks 
and of operational policy of LEKEM were not carried out. 

Responsibility of the Political Level For Handlina the Pollard 
Affair Following His Arrest [Subhead] 

23. The prime minister (S. Peres), the vice prime minister and 
minister of foreign affairs (Y. Shamir) and the minister of defense 
(Y. Rabin) acted in this manner as a united team which decided 
jointly on all lines of action. 

24. The political level did not make a sufficient report to deter­
mine the necessary facts, in order that they mi1ht serve as a basis 
for decisions taken which were pertinent to the matter. 

25. However, the decision in itself, which was taken at that time, 
to cooperate with U.S. authorities in investi1ating tho case, 
appears to us as reasonable. 
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26. The professional team which was entrusted with dealing with 
the issue, questioned a part of those involved but did not consider 
that it was char1ed with the task of carryin1 out a complete 
debrief of the affair. 

27. It is for this reason that, within the framework of the 
a1reement reached on this matter, the team passed incomplete 
facts (for lack of sufficient information) to the U.S. authorities 
and thus dama1ed our credibility. 

28. The criticism we have concemin1 the three ministers lies in 
the fact that they did not take sufficient care to determine the 
facts before they were passed on to the U.S. authorities. 

29. However, it should be emphasized that this was the result of 
pressure of time, the shock of the affair, and the utter surprise 
with which it cau1ht the political level, coupled with the sincere 
desire to cooperate with U.S. authorities within understandable 
security constraints. 

Conclusion■ [Subhead] 

30. The responsibility of the ministers of defense durin1 the 
period Pollard was run is responsibility for the commission or 
omission of their subordinates and for the non-construction of an 
effective oversi1ht system to monitor LEK.EM. The responsibil­
ity of the ministers after the arrest is direct responsibility for 
determinin1 the method of dealin1 with the affair. 

31. In our system the whole 1overnment as one body bears 
responsibility before the Knesset. Whereas every one of the 
ministers who is charaed with a ministry performs a specific 
function, from the point of view of membership in the 1ovcmment 
and parliamentary responsibility, every miniater is an inseparable 
part of the overall body which is the 1overnment. 

32. The government as a whole and every one of the ministers is 
duty,bound to ascertain that the appropriate conclusions stem­
mini from this report are drawn and that the failures mentioned 
in it do not reoccur. 

33. In our opinion the 1overnment as a whole should assume 
responsibility for the failures mentioned in the report which we 
have presented, and should announce this in public. 

Report AMex Places Ministerial Responsibility 
T A181046 Jerusalem Domestic Service in Hebrew 
1000 GMT 18 May 87 

[Text] Dr Yehoshu'a Rotenstreich, the head of the fact-findin1 
committee which investi1ated the Pollard affair, discloses that 
an annex to the committee's report talks of ministerial responsi­
bility and not only of collective responsibility. In his opinion, it is 
desirable that the 1ovemment publish this annex since it does not 
contain any classified material. When this annex is published, Dr 
Rotenstreich said, all will realize that there is no whitewashina 
in the report, but rather a statement of clear, unequivocal facts. 
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As for the criticism Knesset Member Abba Eban leveled at the 
fact-finding committee's report, Dr Rotenstreich said that he 
greatly appreciates Abba Eban and that Eban is entitled to 
disagree with him. However, Rotenstreich added, he was afraid 
Eban did not read the annex attached to his committee's report 
which contains elements common to those in Eban's report. An 
ITIM correspondent says Dr Rotenstreich said this this evenina 
upon returning from Switzerland. 

Government Releases Eban Committee Report 
TA281555 Jerusalem GOVERNMENT PRESS OFFICE 
in English 27 May 87 

["Report of the Subcommittee of the Defense and Foreign 
Affairs Committee on Intelligence and Security Services 
Regarding Jonathan Pollard; Communicated by the Knesset's 
Defense and Foreign Affairs Committee; released on 26 May 87 
at the Knesset" - GPO Headline] 

[Text] Part I [Subhead] 

[GPO] Editor's Note: The following sections of the report deal 
specifically with individuals. The page numbers refer to the 
location of each section in the original report. 

Defense Minister Moshe Arens (p.14) [Subhead] 

Moshe Arens was minister of defense when Pollard bcaan to 
transfer information. Minister Arens admitted and maintained 
that he had exercised no supervision over (Rafi) Eytan, as he was 
preoccupied with the Lebanon war, that Eytan's involvement in 
intelligence had come as a surprise to him, that his many meet­
ings with Eytan were devoted to the topic of Shi'ite terrorism, 
that he had not been briefed on the Scientific Liaison Unit (SLU) 
when he took over as defense minister, and that the period of 
overlap between his tenure as defense minister and the Pollard 
operation had been extremely brief. 

Rafi Eytan has a different version. According to him, precisely 
in August, shortly before handing the ministry over to Yitzhaq 
Rabin, Arens had heard reports from him (Eytan) which should 
have led him to increase his alertness. 

We believe that the implication is that he did not fulfill impera­
tives of ministerial responsibility and that responsibility devolves 
upon him because of this fact. 

Yitzhaq Rabin (p. 15) [Subhead] 

Yitzhaq Rabin assumed the post of defense minister in Septem­
ber I 984. He served in the post for 14 months of the Pollard 
affair, so that he had ample opportunity to take note of phenom­
ena which should have caused him concern. For during that 
period, particularly sensitive intelligence material arrived at a 
growing pace. Had Rabin exercised appropriate supervision over 
the activity of the SLU, he would of necessity have noted the 
grave significance of this material. 

Nevertheless, Rabin evinced no effort to maintain procedures of 
scrutiny or to tighten control, as he was duty-bound to do. During 
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his term of office, the Pollard affair became a protracted phe­
nomenon without Rabin being aware that the source was Pollard. 

These data undoubtedly sugaest that his salient personal duty 
was to exercise proper supervisory means which would have 
enabled him to know about the running of Pollard and to take 
the required measures vis-a-vis the operation. 

The burden of ministerial responsibility devolving on him is 
beyond any doubt. 

Responsibility of the Political Echelon -After Pollard's Fall (p. 
26) [Subhead] 

Prime Minister Shim'on Peres, Vice Premier Yitzhaq Shamir, 
and Defense Minister Yitzhaq Rabin testified before us that the 
decisions taken in the period followina Pollard's exposure (from 
11.22.85 and thereafter) were taken with the concurrence of all 
three of them. 

Hence it follows that the three of them share responsibility for 
these decisions. 

Under the parliamentary system that exists in Israel, the status 
of the prime minister is as first among equals. 

Since Shim'on Peres was the head of the team that dealt with the 
affair, his parliamentary responsibility is preponderant. 

Rafi Eytan (p.8) [Subhead] 

l. Rafi Eytan bears full and direct responsibility for the decision 
to recruit and run Pollard. He did not report this to his superiors, 
and thus received no approval therefor. He was duty-bound to 
have understood that an action such as this was liable to imperil 
important interests of Israel, and to damage the friendly relations 
between Israel and the United States. 

2. Rafi Eytan served the state for many years with unbounded 
loyalty and unfaltering commitment, chalking up to his credit 
accomplishments in a range of tasks, which contributed to the 
country's security. 

3. The opinion was expressed in the committee that the very fact 
of Rafi Eytan's appointment to head the SLU was in the nature 
of a mistake, casting heavy responsibility on the minister in 
question, Ari'el Sharon. Eytan was aiven the dual position of 
heading the SLU -which is responsible to the Defense Ministry 
- and adviser in the war against terrorism, who is responsible 
to the prime minister. 

In this view, an arrangement such as this was practically an 
invitation to inefficiency and for the danaer that the holder of the 
two positions could easily evade supervision, due to his divided 
responsibility to two authorities. 

With all due weight given to this consideration, a majority of the 
committee viewed the mistake of the appointment as wisdom 
after the fact. The majority opinion was that given the cir­
cumstance of time, and based on the situation which presented 
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itself at the time of the appointment, Eytan's appointment was 
considered to be natural in view of his abilities. 

4. On the subject of Pollard, he did not evince wisdom, and even 
demonstrated injudiciousness, which caused the State of Israel 
numerous difficulties and harmed lsrael-U.S. relation_s and rela­
tions with American Jewry. 

Rafi Eytan was punished in that he was removed from his post 
as head of the SLU and was barred from en1a1in1 further in 
intelligence matters. 

Avi'em Sela' (p.11) [Subhead] 

1. Colonel Avi'em Sela' did not act judiciously as we would have 
expected of an experienced and hiah-rankin1 Israel Air Force 
officer such as him. Even if he believed - as he did- that he 
was doing loyal service to the country, common sense should have 
convinced him not to take part in work in which he lacked 
expertise. 

2. In his appearances before this committee, Col Sela' was neither 
clear, consistent nor precise. 

3. With this, it is incumbent upon us to recall that Col Sela', an 
outstanding pilot and exceptional commander, was personally 
punished in a harsh manner. It is doubtful whether he will receive 
his doctorate from New York University, since he can no longer 
return to the U.S.; he did not get the Air Force promotion he was 
supposed to get; he was forced to rcsian his control of the Tel Nof 
base; a larae question mark hanas over the future of his career 
in the Air Force. 

The Approvals Given for Sela"s Involvement (p.12) [Subhead] 

The IAF commander and the former chief of staff applied faulty 
judgment in this affair. They acceded to Col Avi'em Sela"s 
request without carrying out a comprehensive check of their own 
so as to verify that a senior officer was not beina used for a 
mission that would exceed his domain of command. 

Approval should not be aiven for usin1 a carccr-anny officer 
within an intelliaencc framework outside the IDF, without the 
advance permission of the defense minister. It is to be rearetted 
that former Chief of Staff Moshe Levi did not act accordinaly in 
this affair. 

We take note with satisfaction of the defense minister's 
announcement on the subject of utilizina army officers. 

Part II. What Did the Political Echelon Know? (p.6) [Subhead] 

When Pollard's arrest was reported, Prime Minister Shim'on 
Peres announced that in question is an operation which was 
carried out without the knowledge or approval of the political 
echelon. This was conveyed to U.S. Secretary of State George 
Shultz in an official and bindina manner in a telephone conver­
sation between Shultz and Peres which took place on the ni1ht 
between 30 November and l December 1985. A communique 
along these lines was also issued to the press. 
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The question whether the political echelon knew about Pollard's 
handling is such a significant point as far as national credibility 
and international ramifications are concerned, that we went to 
great lenaths in order to clarify it completely. We did not hesitate 
to question all those who were capable of sheddina liaht on the 
possibility that the political echelon did know, if such a possibility 
existed. We did not ignore the fact that some persons who 
appeared before the subcommittee would have personally bene­
fited, by the nature of things, had it been possible to pin direct 
responsibility for their knowled1e of the situation on one or more 
Cabinet members. 

The clarification of this matter which we conducted led to the 
following conclusion which the committee accepted: The sum 
total of the evidence brought before the committee by all the 
witnesses concerned confirms beyond all doubt the conclusion 
that the operational echelons (namely: the Scientific Liaison 
Unit headed by Rafi Eytan) decided to recruit and handle Pollard 
without any check or consultation with the political echelon or 
receivina its direct or indirect approval. 

The committee heard the contention that in intelligence oper­
ations of a certain lcind it is best not to inform the responsible 
political echelon about exact details, the nature of the sources 
and the description of-operations, and that it is preferable that 
the persons in the field refrain from requesting approval in 
advance from the political echelon for recruiting sensitive 
sources. 

The committee rejects this stand as a rule. Although the head of 
an intelligence branch has discretionary power in exercisina his 
authority, even in sensitive cases, as a rule he must report to the 
responsible political echelon in char1e and/or to ask for its 
approval, since otherwise this echelon will be deprived of the 
capability to fulfill its duty of efficient supervision and of the 
possibility to prevent certain operations. 

Rogue Operation or State Responsibility? (p.7) [Subhead] 

Followin1 Pollard's exposure, the Israel Government announced 
that in question was an operation carried out without the 
approval or knowledge of the political echelon. Subsequently, the 
operation was described as a "roaue operation," carried out 
privately by unauthorized persons. 

The statement about the political echelon not knowina and not 
granting its approval is correct, whereas the description of the 

• operation as "rogue" is baseless. 

It is incontrovertible fact that the decision to handle Pollard as 
he was handled, as well as all the stages of implementation 
extending across a year and a half, were carried out by civil 
servants who received their appointments and drew their author­
ity from the aovemment, and more precisely, ·from Israel's 
defcl}se establishment. All the actions of the operational person­
nel and the sums transferred to Pollard himself, derived from 
state resources without the approval or knowledge of the political 
echelon. 

l 

• 
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That the political echelon did not know and did not grant 
approval cannot annul the responsibility of the Israel Govern• 
ment in the situation which was created. 

The assertion that the political echelon did not know is true, but 
it does not solve the problem of the national and ministerial 
responsibility deriving from the involvement of official personnel 
subordinate to the political echelon. The principle "noblesse 
oblige" is not satisfied if a rule is laid down that in every blunder 
or hitch only civil servants shall be subject to inviailation, while 
the responsible persons in the political echelon abandon them in 
the field. 

The government has already implicitly recognized its responsibil­
ity: a) by undertaking to correct the situation; b) by undertak­
ing to dismantle the unit which exceeded its authority; c)by 
pledging to call those responsible to order; d) by publishina the 
defense minister's apoloay on behalf of the government. 

Despite the absense of any ministerial knowledge or approval for 
the operation, the aovernment would do well to state 
unequivocally that Israel admits its responsibility and will con­
tinue to act to correct the damage, since some of its officials were 
involved in this operation. 

Part III. The Decision on Cooperation With the United States 
(p.19) [Subhead] 

On the night between 30 November and 1 December (1985), at 
0330 hours, the U.S. secretary of state phoned Israel's Prime 
Minister Shim'on Peres. In this talk the two discussed the nature 
of the cooperation between Israel and the U.S. in this affair. 

The committee members are divided as to the significance of 
some of the commitments pertainin11 to this cooperation. 

Stand of Committee Members Eban, Dinitz and Harish [Sub­
head] 

The report about the exposure and arrest of Jonathan Pollard 
confronted the Government of Israel with a hiahly distressful 
situation. The impression was created that Israel had behaved 

• towards the friendliest power ever known by the Jewish people in 
a manner incommensurate with the tradition of friendship, and 
with the values and interests shared by the two peoples. Apart 
from the bitterness and sadness which were reflected in the 
administration's stand, a media campaian extremely hostile to 
Israel developed. The prime minister and the vice premier held 
urgent consultations which were joined by the defense minister 
immediately upon his return to Israel from abroad. The three 
personages explained to the Inner Cabinet, to the public on many 
occasions, and to this committee, that they view themselves as 
the members of a team all of whom share responsibility for all 
the decisions taken; they did not make any objection or put 
forward any reservation about any of (those decisions). Our 
perusal of their statements before this committee turns up not a 
single crack or impediment in the approach or strategy they 
recommended. 

The urgency of the pressure exerted by the U.S. to clarify the 
matter, together with salient indications that the political echelon 
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in the U.S. sincerely wished to contain and extinguish the blaze, 
compelled the three ministers to turn their attention uraently to 
the American front. To that end a committee of examination was 
established (Avraham Shalom, Hanan Bar-On and lawyer Ram 
Kaspi) to clarify and deal with the problems created with the U.S. 

Be11innin11 on 22 April (sic) internal consultations and exchanges 
of messaaes took place with the secretary of state in an effort to 
calm the administration and reach cooperation. A key milestone 
in the evolution of the Israeli strateay was a conversation held in 
the early mornina hours (30 November- I December) when Sec­
retary of State Shultz phoned Prime Minister Peres. In this talk 
the prime minister clarified the followina points to Mr Shultz: 
a) Pollard was an aberrant situation, the political echelon was 
unaware of the matter, an unauthorized initiative had taken 
place without any official approval whatsoever; b) Israel under­
takes full cooperation; c)lsrael will allow free access to the 
Israelis involved; d) Israel will punish those responsible; e) the 
unit whose personnel involved themselves in the operation will be 
disbanded; f) Israel will return documents it received via Pollard. 

These commitments were not unreserved. The prime minister 
requested that the interpretation to be placed on his undertakings 
be discussed between Hanan Bar-On, on behalf of Israel, and 
Under- Secretary of State Armacost on behalf of the United 
States. 

Yitzhaq Shamir, who was then vice premier and foreian minister, 
informed us reaarding the conversation that "there were consul­
tations. It was clear that we were going to full cooperation in 
order to conclude the episode." 

To the committee members' question about where it had been 
decided to return the documents and allow testimonies, Shamir 
replied that "this was spoken about in the meetings ... Mr Peres 
spoke with the secretary of state about returning documents 
because they maintained this was American property. There was 
also talk about questioning Israelis, but this was also spoken of 
earlier. It was not something that popped into Peres' mind during 
the conversation." 

The three ministers were and remain in agreement in aiving 
backin& to what Mr Peres told Mr Shultz in their phone conver­
sation and in all decisions taken in the matter. 

Our view is that the decision taken was the right decision, and 
that there was place for the phone conversation with Mr Shultz. 
After all, in Mr. Peres' eyes, Mr Shultz was - and justly so -
not only the foreian minister of the country that was harmed, but 
was also a friend of Israel's seeking to extricate the relations of 
the two countries from the distress afflicting them. Moreover, the 
two ministers did not give Shultz an open-ended pledge. They put 
forward restrictions and reservations, makin& their activity con­
tingent upon the protection of Israel's security and intelliaence 
interests. They also placed restrictions on the place and form of 
the questioning. Furthermore, the three ministers made the 
cooperation contingent upon the grantina of immunity to the 
three persons involved in the affair, and upon American 
aareement that the returned documents would not be used to 
convict Pollard. 
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These moves prevented a debacle and forged tight cooperation 
with Secretary of State Shultz. The senior political echelon in the 
U.S. reacted positively to the conversation with Mr Peres and to 
the messages that followed in its wake. Mr Peres and Mr Shamir 
received messages from Mr Shultz which were steeped in esteem 
and exuded friendship, evincina a desire on his part to contain 
the affair. There were grounds for believing that the tension was 
dissipating and that relations with the U.S. would (again be) 
smooth. It is difficult to describe as a blunder a diplomatic move 
which was crowned with this degree of success. The alternative 
to this policy would have generated a serious setback in relations 
between Israel and the U.S. with all that this entails. It would 
have generated an extreme and furious reaction by all the 
elements of American society, would have thrust Israel into a 
confrontation with Secretary of State Shultz and thereby with 
the White House as well. The result would have been reactions 
against Israel both among public opinion and in the Congress. 

A few months later the situation aaain became embroiled, but 
the factors that caused this did not derive from the decision taken 
by the prime minister, vice premier, and defense minister to 
cooperate, or from the actual commitment which Mr Peres made 
to Mr Shultz. This agaravation did not stem from a strateay 
which the government adopted at the outset of the crisis. Its 
source lay in a mistake made by the committee of examination, 
which did not succeed in puttina the entire picture before the 
political echelon, including the part of Col Avi'em Sela' in the 
affair, as well as several tactical and informational mistakes. 

The foundations of the alliance with the United States arc firm 
and deep, and Israel's policy of cooperation prevented harm being 
done to the central components of the friendhsip which the 
government and people of the United States feel for IsraeL 

Stand of Committee Members Ben-Elisar, Olmert and Marien: 
[Subhead] 

On the niaht between 30 November and 1 December 198S, at 
0330 hours, Secretary of State Shultz phoned Prime Minister 
Shim'on Peres. During their conversation Mr Peres aarccd to 
spell out Israel's modes of cooperation with the U.S. in the affair. 
At the conclusion of the .conversation, Mr Peres aave undertak­
ings in a number of subjects: 

1. The Israelis involved in the affair would be questioned by a 
representative of the U.S. Government. 

2. The Pollard documents would be returned to the U.S. 

3. The Scientific Liaison Unit would be disbanded and its per­
sonnel dismissed. 

4. Disciplinary measures would be taken against those responsi­
ble for the affair. 

There is no doubt that it was the duty of the Israel Government 
to propose immediate cooperation with the U.S. Government in 
the wake of Pollard's exposure, in addition to a full and 
unequivocal apology. The circumstances of Pollard's exposure, 
the justified American outrage, the fear of a serious blow to 
Israel-U.S. relations: all these justified an approach of cooper-
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ation on this subject. The question is what should have been the 
manner and scope of the cooperation Israel should have proposed. 
Prime Minister Shim'on Peres's agreement to return the docu­
ments which had been brought by Pollard, was fundamentally 
wrong and caused extremely serious damage. These documents 
constituted the basis which led to Pollard's conviction and the life 
sentence imposed on him, and this despite an Israeli contention 
that an American commitment existed not to use them aaainst 
Pollard. The incomplete ability to live up to the undertaking to 
return the documents caused a crisis of confidence between the 
U.S. and Israel. 

The prime minister did not heed the advice of those who were 
dealing with the matter on his behalf, who believed that it was 
not possible to return these documents. 

The decision to return the documents was not preceded.by any 
discussion within the framework of the ministerial team or in any 
other forum. We found no minutes of any advance consultation, 
meeting, discussion or even telephone conversation in which this 
move was agreed on. 

On the day following the conversation, the prime minister 
reported it to the ministerial team, and they assented to it. The 
ministcn' assent to the prime minister's decision was a mistake, 
even though in the circumstances, after Mr Peres had given an 
undertaking to Mr Shultz, this could not be retracted without 
causing even greater damage. We do not accept the contention 
that an undertaking to return to documents was unavoidable. The 
cooperation with the U.S. was vital and involved also other 
channels of activity. Had Shim'on Peres directed that a proper 
investigation be conducted, as he was obliged to do, he 
undoubtedly would have refrained from proposing that the doc­
uments be returned, and perhaps even have refused to permit the 
questioning of the Israelis involved in the affair. But Mr Peres 
refrained from ordering an investigation or examining the requi­
site details, thereby becoming entangled in an undertaking he 
should never have given. 

Part IV. The Operational and the Supervisory Echelons (p.13) 
[Subhead] 

Although the icinisterial responsibility for supervision and con­
trol is vested in the hands of ministers and is not transferable. it 
is natural that official personnel be entrusted with the task of 
supervision: A committee was in fact set up in the Defense 
Ministry to supervise the activity of the Scientific Liaison Unit. 
It emerged beyond all doubt that this supervision was not carried 
out in practice. Those responsible for the monitoring did not 
guide the SLU by means of questions or warnings, and did not 
make sure to report to their own superiors in the political echelon. 

During the period in which the Pollard operation was underway 
the central responsibility for the supervision was borne by 
Defense Ministry Director General Menahcm Meron. The direc­
tor general carried out no scrutiny supervision beyond the admin­
istrative area. 

This could not have been the intention of the ministers who set 
up the monitoring committee and placed the director general at 
its head. 
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In his appearance before the subcommittee, he tried to belittle 
the importance of his responsibility and at times did not even 
remember or preferred not to remember his involvement in 
matters relating to the SLU. 

Additional Developments (pp. 24-25) [Subhead] 

1. The prime minister, with the full aareement of the vice premier 
and the defense minister, appointed an examination team but did 
not initiate a thorouah investiaation which would clarify all the 
precise details of the episode. For a lenathy period considerable 
confusion prevailed, as a result of which Israeli fiaures at all 
levels came out with diver1ent statements, in various forms and 
in a variety .of styles, both to each other and to foreian elements. 
A1ain the credibility of the Israelis was harmed - and this was 
and remains the central problem in Israel's stru1&le to restore its 
standina. True, it was justified to arant priority to dialo1Ue with 
the U.S., but at the same time and at any rate immediately 
afterwards, duty-dictated consolidatin1 a correct, true and con­
vincin1 version on the circumstances of Israel's involvement. 

2. Instead, a completely baseless story was disseminated amon1 
U.S. Administration circles, which was incapable of convincin1 
anyone anywhere. 

3. An Israeli dele1ation left for the U.S. and returned five days 
later. Durin1 this time conflictina and confusin1 versions of 
Isr~eli elements continued to appear. 

4. A.meetina took place at the country club with an American 
dele1ation beaded by Judie Sofacr. One of the serious mistakes 
made by the examination team at this mcetina was to conceal the 
role of Avi'em Sela' as an important fiaure in the development 
of the episode, this without the knowled1e of the political echelon. 
When this deception was revealed, the Americans were furious. 

5. The U.S. Administation, and particularly the ·friendly ele­
ments in it, attributed areat importance to Israel's undertakin1 
"to punish the culprits." Here the American interest focused on 
two persons: on Rafi Eytan and at a later sta1e on Avi'cm Sela'. 
Rafi Eytan was appointed director of the lar1est cx:onomic enter­
prise in Israel, with the Americans exprcssin1 their protest. 

6, Several months aao areat publicity was aiven to the intention 
to promote Gal Sela' both in rank and in post. This step caused 
bitterness among the American people and the American public 
was vociferously outra1ed, By addin1 insult to iajury and despite 
the red li1ht set off by the American ambassador in his talks in 
Jerusalem, a statement was issued on the appointment of Col 
Avi'em Sela' as commander of the Tel Nof base. Meanwhile Col 
Avi'em Sela' resigned from his post as Tel Nof commander. His 
resignation calmed the stormy situation. 

We express our satisfaction with Sela"s resignation from his post, 
but we cannot i1nore the mistake of Defense Minister Rabin in 
appointin1 him under these circumstances. 

Part V. Sbim'on Peres' Appearance Before the Subcommittee on 
lntelli1ence and Secret Services on 11.28.85, and His Remarks 
to the Inner Cabinet That Day (p.29) [subhead] 
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On I l.28.85 Prime Minister Shim'on Peres appeared before this 
committee. The committee members are divided as to the essence 
of Mr. Peres' report. 

Stand of MK's [Members of Knesset] Ben-Elisar, Olmert and 
Ma1en: [Subhead] • • 

The committee devoted considerable time to discusaina the 
appearance of Prime Minister Sbim'on Peres before it ·on 
11.28.85, in the wake of Pollard's exposure. 

At that session Mr Peres reported on the circumstances sur­
roundin1 Pollard's recruitment to the Scientific Liaison Unit 
(SUJ). Accordin1 to Mr Peres' version, Pollard approached 
Israel on his own initiative and explained that he was a represen­
tative of American lntclli1ence. He showed appropriate docu­
ments to verify this. Already in the session on 11.28.85 MK 
Eliyahu Ben-Elisar expressed 1reat doubt about the probability 
of this version. • 

Nevertheless, this version was also related to the Inner Cabinet 
in its meetin1 that same day. Earlier, at 2300 hours the previous 
cvenin1, Mr Peres conveyed a messa1e to Secretary of State 
Shultz containin1 this version. 

Patently, if Pollard actually approached Israel from the outset, 
presentina himself as a representative of American Intelli1ence 
who was actin1 via unofficial channels, then his activity in 
Israel's service does not cast on us the same dearee of responsibil­
ity. as would be the case if Israel had recruited him as a full­
fled1ed spy. 

It 1oes without saying that it was important to use this version in 
order to li1hten somewhat the difficulties we faced. However, this 
version is of course fanciful, aroundlcss and devoid of any chance 
of succeedin1, since Mr Pollard did not present himself as a 
representative of American Intelliaence and did not present his 
papers as proof of this claim. 

Circumstances of the Ori&in of This Version: [Subhead] 

Immediately after the Pollard affair beaan to unravel, it became 
clear to various elements that there was a need to crystallize an 
Israeli version which would reduce to a minimum the damaae 
that had been and would be caused. 

Mr Peres maintained that already on 11.28.85, in a mcetin1 that 
took place in his office follwina Pollard's exposure, he was liven 
an incorrect report to the effect that Pollard had stated on his 
own initiative, that he was a representative of American lntel­
li1ence. When asked, Prime Minister Peres replied that when the 
report was made Rafi Eytan was sittin1 in his room and he (Peres) 
even confirmed these details. 

Mr Peres maintained that at no staae did he hear any other [last 
word printed in boldface] description of the events, and he 
explained the incorrect report to the Knesset committee by sayin1 
that he himself was convinced that this was a true account of the 
affair. 
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The possibility that Mr Peres on 11.22.85 heard the version about 
Pollard's volunteering as though it were truthful, is extremely 
poor, for the simple reason that this version had its genesis three 
days later. It is impossible that on 11.22.85 Mr Peres heard a 
version that was not in existence. 

Mr Peres maintains that Rafi Eytan took part in the meeting at 
which he was given the misleading report. Eytan's presence in 
fact reinforces precisely a version opposite to that of Peres's. 

Immediately [last word ptinted in boldface] Pollard was exposed, 
Eytan stated that he assumed full responsibility for the affair. 
[sentence as received] He emphasized and reemphasized that no 
political level had known details relating to Pollard personally. 

Under these circumstances, what reason could Eytan have had 
to mislead the political echelon in a matter which could be of no 
benefit to himself? 

Moreover, Eytan on 11.27.85 submitted a document containing 
an Israeli version. It is beyond understanding why Eytan would 
prepare such a document while at the same time lendin1 a hand 
to the dissemination of a story which would mislead the political 
level, while he was simultaneously making every effort to coop­
erate and even to assume responsibility personally. 

The version which holds that Mr Peres was misled in this matter 
appears totally unreasonable. Mr Peres could and should have 
known exactly what had occurred and under what circumstances 
Pollard had been recruited to the SLU, and to the best of our 
impression, on [sentence printed in boldface] 11.28.85 he indeed 
should have known this. (Emphasis here and elsewhere in the 
original - GPO). 

Several committee members asked why Mr Peres would want to 
relate such a crude version which could so easily be refuted. 

On the surface this question sounds reasonable. Actually, it is 
not. Mr Peres did not in the least pretend to claim that Israel 
could and should reveal all the details of the story to the 
Americans, and indeed there is no doubt that it was essential to 
crystallize a reasonable, albeit partial, version. 

The question was: Which version should be conveyed to 
Shultz? Mr Peres gave him the only version that was brought to 
his knowledge. That fact that this version was refuted does not 
attest to the fact that Mr Peres did not know it was a fabricated 
story. It is only proof that it was an unsuccessful invention. 

One could forgive Mr Peres the use of this story which had no 
prospect of succeeding, had he not sought to present it as a 
truthful story to the members of the Knesset committee. 

What is the reason that Mr Peres stumbled in speaking untruth 
to the Knesset committee? Various explanations could be 
adduced, but it is not our business to analyse Mr Percs's motiva­
tion in this matter. 

Ultimately, there is no doubt that Mr Peres misled the Knesset 
committee and provided it with a report which was not true. 
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In his defense, it will be recalled, Mr Peres maintained that on 
11.28.85 he did not yet know the truth, hence he erred in good 
faith. 

We would very much like to believe this contention because of 
the great respect we hold for Mr Peres and his high position. 

If Peres's contention is correct that on 11.28.85 he did not yet 
know the truth, then a very grave question arises regarding the 
nature of his functioning as prime minister - if a week after 
Pollard's exposure Peres did not know the details of the episode. 

One way or the other, Mr Peres could and was duty-bound [last 
two words printed in boldface] to know the details. That he did 
not know them at this stage, in these circumstances, and while 
he was in contact with international elements (and) gave an 
incorrect report to the Knesset - all this speaks for itself. 

Stand of MK's Eban, Dinitz and Harish [Subhead] 

We firmly reject the allegation that Shim'on Peres ostensibly, 
knowingly provided incorrect information in a certain portion of 
his report during his appearance before the subcommittee on 
services on 11.28.85. We have full trust in the version of Shim'on 
Peres, according to which he conveyed the things as they were 
known to him at that time in the belief that they were true. 

Because of the security sensitivity of these matters, we cannot 
detail all the data on which we base our stand. But two facts 
which can be published are sufficient to refute the allegation 
being made against Shim'on Peres: 

I. On the same day that Shim'on Peres appeared before the 
subcommittee on services, 11.28.85, he also appeared before the 
Inner Cabinet and there read out the contents of a document 
containing the same information which Shim'on Peres had given 
earlier to the subcommittee. And at the conclusion of that 
passage Shim'on Peres said, according to the Inner Cabinet 
minutes: "What we wrote here is the truth." 

2. The mistaken information reached Shim'on Peres from a 
document which is in the possession of the subcommittee, and 
which was definitely liable to prove misleading! MK Ben-Elisar 
himself acknowledged this in a discussion of the subcommittee 
on services on 3.27.87. 

It is important to note that the difference between what Shim'on 
Peres knew and reported that day to the subcommittee, and the 
information which he found was correct afterward, had no 
influence whatsoever on the committee's findin1s or conclusions, 
beyond the debate which arose on this specific point. 

We regret the decision of Knesset members to publish statements 
of condemnation against a citizen and public figure which are 
clearly - and without justification - aimed at harming his 
honor and his good name. • 

Part VI. Introduction (p 3). [subhead] 

I. The Knesset regulations (4.(a).12) empower the Defense and 
Foreign Affairs Committee to discuss "the state's foreign policy, 
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armed forces and security." In 1982, at the initiative of the 
then-chairman of the committee (Moshe Arens), a number of 
subcommittees of limited composition were established in order 
to discuss in greater detail and depth sensitive topics which are 
within the committee's purview. 

The subcommittee holds comprehensive and thorough discus­
sions with the intelligence services. In Israel the principle of 
parliamentary oversight of the functioning of the intelligence 
establishments is maintained thanks to the work o( this subcom­
mittee. The subcommittee does not deal with operations, but it 
does take an interest in central situations and problems, provides 
counsel in the political spheres, and approves, on behalf of the 
Knesset, the provision of the required resources for the function­
ing of the establishments. 

2. From the outset the prime minister thought - in appearing 
before the committee - that there was no place to conduct an 
investigation on the topic -of Jonathan Pollard. Committee 
Chairman Abba Eban stated that concern for orderly admin­
istration, together with considerations of forei2n policy, obligate 
the subcommittee to clarify the subject in all its aspects. On the 
same day Knesset Speaker MK Shlomo Hile! announced that he 
supports the realization of the Knesset's responsibility in this 
sphere, as in all spheres of the government's functioning. 

3. On 11 March 1987 the Inner Cabinet issued a statement on its 
decision to establish an investigation committee into the Pollard 
case and to assist the subcommittee of the Defense and Foreign 
Affairs Committee in its work. This decision generated positive 
reactions in Israel and the world. Publication of the 
announcement concerning the commencement of the 
clarification by the Knesset subcommittee led to a considerable 
moderation in the stand of governmental and media elements in 
the U.S. vis-a-vis Israel. But the main emphasis in our activity 
originates in the national duty to contribute to the enhancement 
and improvement in the functioning of the establishments which 
we deal with. This includes spotting and examining hitches, to 
ensure their non-recurrence. 

4. The work of the subcommittee beaan with a detailed report 
from Defense Minister Yitzhaq Rabin on 12 March 1987. We 
note with satisfaction that the government's pledge to assist the 
subcommittee was realized with all seriousness and thorough­
ness. All the ministers, officers and civil servants past and present 
appeared before us - some at their own • initiative. All the 
documents we requested were provided, including the minutes of 
Cabinet and Inner Cabinet meetings. 

5. The subcommittee has standing responsibility which exceeds 
the sphere of the Pollard case. Therefore it took advantage of the 
appearance of the ministers and the other interviewees in order 
to deepen its examination of the intelligence community. No 
country grants publicity to intelli2ence establishments and meth­
ods. Thus, most of the material which accumulated in the hands 
of the subcommittee for this clarification will be placed at the 
exclusive [last word printed in boldface] disposal of the ministers 
and security personnel whose responsibility relates to the subject 
under discussion. This report is no more than a miniscule portion 
of the comprehensive material that we accumulated. It refers to 
topics in which the Knesset and public have a special interest and 
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which can be published with security limitations. The full and 
secret report will be submitted to the perusal of those concerned. 

6. The subcommittee does not have the status of a judicial 
institution, hence it docs not follow procedures such as are 
customary in legal investigations. Thus the subcommittee does 
not intend to pass judgment in terms of personal conclusions 
which are liable to follow from its findin1s and evaluations. This 
stand is accepted by all the members of the subcommittee, and 
this report is worded accordingly. On the other hand, the sub­
committee docs reserve the right to express assessments and 
impressions, and to summarize the findin1s and conclusions, as 
is customary in proper parliamentary life. 

7. It is the way of the world that a hitch which is revealed in an 
intelligence establishment has powerful reverberations, while 
intelligence successes arc wrapped in silence. This report con­
cerns a very serious hitch. The criticism levelled at a certain 
operation, which would have been better never to have seen the 
light of day, does not indicate a disrc1ard of the achievements of 
the intelligence services, which constitute an essential component 
in Israel's vital security system. The resourcefulness, darin2, and 
very often the heroism and sacrifice of the upholders of the 
intelligence missions are known and open before us. These ser­
vices can take pride in their accomplishments and the results of 
their efforts, and the State of Israel owes them a debt of esteem 
and appreciation. 

What the Report Deals With (P 5) [subhead] 

8. This report concerns itself with the considerations, operations 
and decisionmaking procedures of the Cabinet ministers, civil 
servants and officers who were involved to one de1rce or another 
in situations that were created as a result of the employment of 
Jonathan Pollard. The first period to which this report applies 
began at the end of May 1984, when Pollard succeeded for the 
first time, at his initiative, in makin1 contact with an officer in 
the Israel Air Force [IAF1 Col Avi'cm Sela'. From that time on, 
Israelis continued to maintain a connection with Pollard in the 
U.S., Israel and France until his arrest by the U.S. authorities 
on 19 November 1985. Throughout this period Pollard was run by 
Refa'el Eytan and his aides in the Scientific Liaison Unit. 

9. The arrest, trial and sentencing of Pollard made this matter 
public knowledae and necessitated the involvement of the Cabi­
net and the Inner Cabinet. The people of Israel were surprised 
and appalled when they learned the details of an espionage 
operation executed by Israelis - civil servants - which led to a 
crisis in relations between Israel and the U.S. It is here that the 
problem arises of the government's responsibility towards the 
Knesset and the public. In addition, in the sphere of relations 
between Israel and the U.S. worrisome tension prevailed which 
encompassed very broad circles among the sympathetic Ameri­
can public. The government was called on to work for the repair 
of one important strand in Israel's fabric of international ties. 

Part VII. Reservations of MK David Magen (p.9) [subhead) 

I. The public report of the committee referring to the degree of 
responsibility of the Scientific Liaison head, Mr Refa'el Eytan, 
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does injustice to the man, to the personnel of the unit he was in 
charae of, and to the entire matter. 

By the nature of thinas, the committee was unable to specify in 
this report, due to its beina published, numerous details which 
would have attested to the nature of the unit Eytan headed. The 
clear conclusion stemmina from these details is that the recruit­
ment of Pollard and his handlina were done with authority, and 
committee members indeed aaree that Refa'el Eytan did not 
exceed the authority invested in him. 

This was the reason· that followina Pollard's exposure Prime 
Minister Shim'on Peres stated that "we do not want an investiaa• 
tion, because it will reveal thinas we already know." Followina 
suit, Defense Minister Yitzhaq Rabin told the Inner Cabinet on 
28 Novermber 1985: "There is no choppina of heads, nor will 
there be." 

2. In the forty years of his work in the civil service, Rafi Eytan 
made a larae and unique contribution. His brilliant achievements 
within the framework of his work in the various security branches 
were not and cannot be publicized, but it is a fact that all the 
committee members without exception have a personal apprecia­
tion for his tremendous contribution to Israel. 

When Shim'on Peres became prime minister in the end of 1984, 
he saw to it - for incomprehensible and unclear reasons - that 
Eytan distanced himself from the Prime Minister's Office and 
someone else appointed in his place. Despite this injustice, Rafi 
Eytan did not leave the civil service and continued to invest all 
his efforts and talents in his work, which now shrank to activity 
in the Defense Ministry alone. Durina the period in which Mr 
Eytan headed the Scientific Liaison Unit, it reached the peak of 
its achievements. One of the security personnel who appeared 
before the committee expressed this as follows: "Until Rafi 
arrived we talked about a Scientific Liaison Unit, and since Rafi 
arrived we called the SLU - Rafi. The material Rafi Eytan was 
made of was more than once described by the hiah~t echelon as 
'priceless'." 

3. In the first staaes of Pollard's recruitment, Rafi Eytan under­
stood the particular sensitivity of tho issuo and took the troiiblc 
to define the potential hazards of runnlna Pollard in a detailed 
d0'1Wllent. In the document, he issued instructions on special 
rulea and caution. In retrospect, it emeraes that Rafi Eytan'1 
instructions were not fulfilled. His statement to the committoe 
"I am willing to assume the responsibility" is not tantamount to 
the committee's a,ireement that he indeed bears all the responsi­
bility. Rafi Eytan's attempt in his appearance before the commit­
tee to absolve of any mistake his superiors and the echelon 
subordinate to him, as well as others involved in tho affair, 
deserves special appreciation as a aesturc of friendship and 
fighters' comradeship but cannot lead the committee to the 
conclusion that the mistakes in the operation were those of Rafi 
Eytan and that all the responsibility devolves on him. 

4. The claim that Rafi Eytan went too far in makina use of the 
assistance of an IDF officer in an intelliaence operation uncon­
nected to the army is incorrect. It was established in the commit­
tee that Col Sela' aided the SLU only after Rafi Eytan 
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approached the IAF, who, in a letter to Col Sela', gave approval 
for his cooperation with the SLU. 

S. The critical period prior to Pollard's fall was the summer and 
fall of 1985. At the beiiinning of June 1985, Mr Eytan was taken 
to the hospital when he was sufferin& eye problems. On 3 October 
1985 his sight returned and he returned to working part time. I 
assume that in regular conditions he would have succeeded in 
ascertainin& that his orders to halt the link with Pollard were 
beina fulfilled; he was prevented from carryina out this action 
due to his illness. Herc it should be recalled that even with his 
return to work in October, his siaht was still physically limited. 

6. IQ1mcdiatcly with the failure of the operation, Mr Eytan took 
pains to inform the prime minister that he was assumina respon­
sibility. This personal sacrifice came within the framework of his 
viewina the matter as one of life and death, and in the hope that 
the mishap would not turn into a complicated and difficult affair. 
Since this condition was not fulfilled, and mistakes made by the 
political echelon turned the "mishap" into an "affair," there is 
no point in accedina to Eytan's request and agreeing (sic). Thus, 
there was and is no place for the formulation appearina in the 
report that there were Americans who doubt the severity of the 
punishment meted out to Rafi Eytan. 

With the exposure of Pollard, Rafi Eytan's world was destroyed. 
He wa. dismissed from his post (at the demand of the Americans), 
and a brilliant security career was lopped off brutally and 
roughly. It is inconceivable that there was allegedly place to take 
note of a petition not to quickly appoint him to a senior economic 
position. Not even the bigiiest sinner is punished twice for the 
same sin. Despite his considerable success as the prime minsiter's 
adviser of terrorism, Mr Shim'on Peres saw to it that he was 
dismissed from this post immediately he assumed the office of 
prime minister. And as if this were not enouah, and despite the 
bindina statement of the defense minister aaainst the backdrop 
of Pollard's exposure that "there is no choppina of heads, nor will 
there be," Prime Minister Shim'on Peres was quick to punish 
Rafi ijytan and only Eytan by dismissin& him from his position 
as hoad of the SLU. The questions must be asked: . What is the 
source of the lust of certain elements to see Rafi Eytan's head 
"chQPPed ofr' for a third time? 

Reservation of MK's Dinitz and liarish (p.27) [Subhead) 

We are of the opinion that followin1 the sentence, "Hence it 
follows that the three of them share responsibility for these 
decisions" (see GPO translation, Part I, p,2. "Responsibility of 
the political echelon ... "), the following sentence should be 
inserted: '1The three acted as a team by virtue of the positions 
they held in the aovernment as prime minister, vice promier and 
foreian minister, and defense minister, and they bear responsibil­
ity toaether before the Knesset for their decisions." 

Reservation of MK David Magen (p.28) [Subhead) 

As of November 1985, a forum composed of three ministers -
the prime minister, the foreian minister and the defense minister 
- dealt with the affair. True, it was explained that the aspects 
of the Pollard affair relate to security and to the plane of the 
Foreign Ministry, hence the special composition (of the team). 
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However, from the moment the affair became a tangled interna­
tional episode, standing at the head of the political agenda, it 
should have been dealt with in a regular government forum. If 
the government wished to forgo its powers and transfer them to 
a team composed of just three personages, it should have taken 
an explicit decision to this effect. 

Reservations Relating to Sections Dealing With the Function 
and Responsibility of Moshe Arens and Yitzhaq Rabin in Their 
Capacity as Defense Ministers During the Pollard Operation -
submitted by MK Mikha Harish (p.16) [Subhead] -

Instead of the version approved by the committee, I wish to note 
the following: 

I 11 

1. Moshe Arens was minister of defense when Pollard began to 
transfer meaningful information, get briefinas and funds, and 
embark on the course which led to the hitch that is the subject of 
this report. Minister Arens admitted and maintained that he had 
exercised no supervision over (Rafi) Eytan, as he was preoccupied 
with the Lebanon war, that Eytan's involvement in intelligence 
had come as a surprise to him, that his many meetings with Eytan 
were devoted to the topic of Shi'ite terrorism, that he had not 
been briefed on the Scientific Liaison Unit (SLU) when he took 
over as defense minister, and that his tenure as defense minister 
had been brief. 

2. This version constitutes a confession of sorts that Moshe Arens 
did not fulfill imperiatives of ministerial responsibility with 
respect to Rafi Eytan and that responsibility should devolve on 
him because of this fact; the more so following Rafi Eytan's 
presentation of a picture entirely different from the one retained 
in Moshe Arens's memory. Rafi Eytan testified, on the basis of 
notes taken at the time, that he had spoken many times with 
Arens about topics that should have aroused the minister's 
curiosity and concern about the sources of the information and 
material he was receiving, and that expressly in August, a short 
time after transferring the ministry to Yitzhaq Rabin, Arens 
heard reports from Rafi Eytan which should have led to increased 
alertness. 

3. The conclusion is that Minister of Defense Arens did nothing 
which could be interpreted as imposing supervision, or minimal 
authority, over the SLU, which was a Defense Ministry unit. It 
should be noted that Minister Arens was well versed in the 
professional matters handled by Rafi Eytan. His conclusion is 
that by any reasonable definition of the term "ministerial respon­
sibility," responsibility should devolve on Minister Arens for that 
fateful period in 1984 when the Pollard affair began. 

4. Moshe Arens's past and backaround should have led him to 
heed and be involved in SLU matters, on a scale exceeding that 
of all the defense ministers who preceded and followed him. 
Moshe Arens, who was familiar with the SLU due both to his 
personal and professional contacts and his public positions prior 
to his assumption of the defense portfolio, certainly knew that 
this was an organization dealing with delicate and problematic 
matters, necessitating control and scrutiny. 

ln view of the above, his responsibility is even graver considering 
the fact that Rafi Eytan fulfilled the role of SLU head only in a 
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part-time capacity, and that he agreed in advance that the SLU 
be directed by a person whose main attention was concentrated 
on a different topic, at a time when the SLU did not receive the 
necessary direction and attention which call for the full eneray, 
mental capacity and responsibility of the responsible person. 

5. Yitzhaq Rabin "inherited" a situation in which nealect of the 
matters of the unit headed by Rafi Eytan had become something 
of a tradition. He served in the post for 14 months of the Pollard 
affair. This means that he had ample opportunity to take note of 
phenomena which should have caused him concern. It is undeni­
able that the minister's defense and political experience could 
have afforded him expertise and sensitivity vis-a-vis the activity 
of Rafi Eytan and the SLU. 

6. On the face of it, there are oversiaht systems in the form of 
monitoring committees, but the ministry administration did not 
question Eytan as to the purpose of the administrative assistance 
that he requested. Actually, Rafi Eytan's subordination is noth­
ing but a formal myth. 

7. Notwithstanding, during Yitzhaq Rabin's term, Rafi Eytan 
ceased to serve as the adviser on terrorism and his sole duty was 
to direct the SLU. As a rule, we received testimonit:s dem­
onstrating that Yitzhaq Rabin evinced greater sensitivity than 
his predecessor in the post, in all matters relating to supervision 
of the SLU, and it is regrettable that this sensitivity did not lead 
to more vigorous action which might have prevented in good time 
the damage incurred by the eruption of the Pollard affair, whose 
origins lie in Moshe Arens's term as minister of defense. 

8. In accordance therewith, it must be asserted that Minister of 
Defense Yitzhaq Rabin did not fulfill the imperatives of ministe­
rial responsibility reaarding the supervision of Rafi Eytan and 
the SLU. 

MK Simcha Dinitz' reservations Concernina the Section Dealing 
With Defense Minister Yitzhaq Rabin (p.18) [Subhead] 

1. In the first paragraph, the following should be omitted: "This 
means that he had ample opportunity to take note of phenomena 
which should have caused him concern." And this because 
intelligence material was brought to the desk of all the defense 
ministers prior to and followina this period, without any indica­
tion of the material's source. 

2. The second paragraph should be omitted and the following 
inserted in its place: "Material was submitted to the committee 
indicating that the minister of defense actually evinced alertness 
and even called the attention of the SLU chief to the risks 
involved in its activity." 

Rabin, Peres Blast Eban at Labor Meeting 
TA28!83/ Jerusalem Domestic Service in English 
1700 GMT 28 May 87 

[Text] And now to the uproar at the Labor Party's Central 
Committee. Over to Sabra Chartrand: 
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Retpontibilitf of the political echelon-~ after Pollard'•· fall (p,26) • • ' 
_..._ ................. ...._ _________________________________ ~---------..-·. 
Prl• Mbhter Sbi110n 1'11r11s, Vice Premier ·ur.ahak Sha1dr 1 aad O.fenoe Minister 
Yitshek 14btn testified bafore us that the daci,ion, tAten in the period , 
fn11owina ~ollard'• e:rpoeure (from 22.11.85 and thereafter) were taken with ti. 
concurrence of all three of them. 

Hance it follo~• th4t t~.e three of thu ahere raeponaibilitJ for th••• 
d1Jcidona. 

Under the P"rliamenury syatem that ·exiat• in :i:dta-el, the ttat11a of the prime 
minbt"'r h at1 first a1111>01 equals. ·: • 

• '·. 

Sinc11 Shimon Paree t"t'II th• hud of th-, tH!I tb•t ·dealt with· the lffa1r, hia 
pi\r 112J11entAry r11•pon1Ji bl 11 ty· 11 prepond . ..:·.i1t.. 

1 .- :tdi ~H,n b':flU .full flnri dh,tet r:t•pal'!•H>lt ty fot'· t~ d«d.i•to'I to recruil: 
an4 run l'oll-.rd, lk dU not r•port t.hb t:o hh 11,p,iirlort, and thu• uceived ad 
ar!t'-0""1 th~r"lf,..r. 8"'. w"• duty-bound to hA•• u1"1der1 tooct th~c ~n act,.on auch •• 
thit ., .. ~ U~bl• to h1~.,E"1l i•pnrt11nt inte:-Ht■ of IClrMl • llM to c\~•11c• the 
frte.ndl!" reb.tinnr. t-""lt"'"l'-n l•r~"ll ao,t th .. Unitaff St,.tc111. 

2. e.,u Siu.u· e•.rv~ tb-1 at.r.t• for iaen::, r.ar• ,.U:b. unt,oundtd lo1alt7.and 
un.f~lt~;:in1 c~1.tr1nt:, c:b::-lkillfl up to bi• ,:i:edit ,.cco•~l.1.l'lhffl.otDtl in "' r~•. of 
taa~, ~h.1.c!"l cantri~•1t~J to th~ counr:ry •t-· O'icurit::,. __ r. 

3. tb'J o-;,.1.ilion ""~ ~rr"'uad • in the cOll"l'ittl!a tlu-t th,. v,~ f11ct: of a.u litan'• 
,.,~oint,r,-,nt l:o hP.11,t th-, SJ.11 "" in tho Mt.,,re of c: 111.:l.1t:1~111, c~•t101 heav:, 
:•111~on•:1.1'1lU7 (lq th-, lld.nj,a':er in quotUc-!'1. Adel PhAroa. !:f.tl'n 1'118 1ben th• 
dud J'c~.lt.:c;1 a1 h"'!l-ting tho m.u - w1':'.,h 1J r:'!':1p,,o,,,.b,.• ,_., t-.h~ D!lleoH • 
W.ld.;,trr - ~':Id a:tvi:-a,: in ti11 ",r .... ~.r..,t t:111:rorl::11, utio l., r-.111ponaible to the 
pd .. '9, r:.:.;i.f.111t.~r~ 

ln t.h.t.n ••f•~·, i:."l ~~:.-~"f-'"'~nt: i.uch fllt th~.~ •• .,.,. !'t~~":ic~lly .-n l'lVi:,11.':ion to 
io:,:;:::f.cf. ::-:,~:,- 11,r:-. ~ .t:c": :;: .. , ~'"!l'.t":r th.-t: t~·· -:,,.,1~,,,.,.. Ct:Z t:t,., t."l"l :':'"tH:1""31 rn11ld 
Hr.lily ,w.-<11 1'11':'""'.;.vi;-.;;i,n, dua to h1!1 tf1.':•:i,t .... J -:-11.:rn"-i:1.t,,.llt.7 ... " ~o •1~l,,otit1e1. 

With ~,.1. d.11-: ~-~t:;!,t d. 1.•110 to thil cna~Ma.-•~inn, ~. e-.'ljor.it~ nf th, co-ttt•• 

.... 

.,t~-: i tt-.~ ,,t.: ,:"llrA o! tl,'1 ,,pn~.ntm~nt ~~ ,..: .. ~do11 flf toi· th't f.-~t • '1i1~ ,ii,-Jndt7 , •. 
orf.'1~tt, ~-\., t:!-tl"t ,"'iv·" tbll!! d.tcumlto'lnC"' o~ t1111I!, a~ b11•"!<t on th'\ 11·t.tu•tlon . • 

• - • '1 -
~•h:t~~ p~::;,•.-:tt-~,l ~,tr.,U ~t tr.~ tu.,.. (If t:h'l &?P')iPl:111'1Dt, t1r:.-.:n•3 ,tp~htl'ICnt, ., •• : l • 
cc:neid"-~'l,rt:o ·,"3, n,t.u-:-t\l ti\ vi~, of hi:, r.Miiti"l:'• • 

4. r.n. t~., ~ubjoct o! ~,:1l!ard, h3 did not evince 't'ir.ttCl!II, 11od 4V4'n del!IQnatratad 
iaJ111dlc1.nuAa . .,.,n, l"'lich C.Al'Sed the State nf lara'!l 0'1~'!"0"" difUculth• .sad 
hllw:i?~.t 'X:re~'t-u. :;. rcJ 1.t1on1 and rel11tJ.o,n l'itb ,"', de1.1n Je'f,:y, 

i b.fl ;~·.,. .. ,. punished 1a that ha was r-.110ved fro• hi.a po11t a:, head of 
I th• SLU 

(__.t~1 .,.,,. ij11-r-::-t.'1 ,:,:oi,i engaging further in 1nUll1ge~.c:e 111~tter11. 

IO•' 3 
• 
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--------------------------------~-----------------------------
What did ct. political echelon know? (p.6) 

-----------------------------When Pollard'• arreat wu reported, Prima Mtni•ter ShlPK>n Pere• announced t!wt 
jn queation is an op~ration which waa carried out without the knowledse or 
~p,-wv&l_ of tha p~-litical echelon. This wu conveyed t«? u.s. Secretaey C'!f State 
George Shult•, ill .a official and bindina manner in • telephoL,• c011versaUoQ. 
between Shultz and Peres which took place on tt. ni1ht batween· 30 November and l 
Deceabar 1985, A co1111Unique alone che■ a line• wa1 alao issued to thl pr•••• 

The quaation whether the political echelon knew about Pollard'• handliq 1, auch 
• et1niflcant point •• far a■ natlol\al cudibtlity and intenaacional • •• • 
ra■ificationa ar• concerned. that lfe wnt to 1raat length• ia ord•r to clarify 
it c011plataly. We did not heaitata to quHUon all tho•• who nr• capabl• of· 
sheddina light on the possibility that the political echelon did know. if •uch a 
poaaibility exiatad. We did not ignore the fact that·son per10M who appeared 
before the eubcommittee would have personally benefited, by the n•ture of 
thing•~ had it bean possible to pin direct ruponaib111ty for their lmowled1e of 
the ■ ituation on one or more Cabinet membare. • 

The clarification of Chia matter which we conducted led to the followtna 
conclu1ion which the co~mlttee accepted, the sum total of the evidenc• brougbt 
before the coDID!ittee by all th• witneaae, concerned confiru beyond all doubt 
the conclusion that the operational echelon• (namely: the Scientific Liaiaon 
Unit headed by Rafi Eit•n) dacided to recruit and handle Pollard without any 
chaclt or consultation with the political echelon or receiving its direct or 
indirect approv~l. 

The committee hea~d the CQntantiun that in int•lligance opar~t1on■ of a certain 
kind iC is best not to inform the reaponaible political echaloo about •xact 
details, the nature of the source■ and the description of operations, and that 
it is prafarabl• that the per•ona in the fielJ refraiu fr011.. roquzctt~; approval 
in advance from the po~lcical echelon for recruiting ••nsitiva sc•J'tCH. 

'l'he co1111it~ee rejects this atand aa a rule. Although the haad of an 
intelliaence branch ha• has discretionary power in exercising his authority. 
evt4n ,enaitive cases, aa a rule he IIIUIC report to Che reaponeible political 
ec1-loir"in charge and/or to &Mk for its approval, 1ince otherwia• thi• echelon 
will be deprived of the capability to fulfill ita duty of efficient •uparvi,ioa 

• and of the possibility co prevent certain operations. 
,\ 

_ Rogue operation or etate respansibility7 (p.7) 
""',_.,1-------------:-~-~----------------------

lollowini Pollard's ~xpoaur•• tha Iarael government announced that in queatiou 
wu an operation carried out without th• approval or knowledge of the political 
echelon. Subsequl!ntly, the ope"t"ation was described aa a "rogue operation," 
carried out privatl!ly by unauthorized perad'hs. 

11te statement u.bout the political echelon not knowing and not granting iCI 
approval is correct, whcnH the de11crlptfon of "he /\~ll!T:!.t:1.on -.~ "tn,11e" ts 
baH1eee. 

END 
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----------~----------------------------------------------------
Th• Decision on Cooperation with the United States (p,19) 

--------------------------------------------On the night between 30 November and l December [1985), at 0330 hour■ , th• u.s. 
eeeretary ,;,f •tat• phoned Iu·ael • ·• Prime Min:l.lter ShiiaDn Per••. Ila th:l.a talk 
the t,,o d11cuaaed the nature of the coop•ratiOCL betwe•n Iarael and th• u.s. in 
ttii■ affair. 

Th• co•lttH 11111kb~rr are divid•d u to the tiplflcan.ce ·of •olQ''•. of the . 
• c:o•itment1 partlliniq to thb cooperation. 

Stand of Committee Helllbar1 Bban, ntnit• and Hftri ■h 

The report abont the P.Y.po1un and arra&t of Joaathaa Pollard coafronced tll• 
gov.m■ent of Itraa.l vith • highly d1etre1dul 111.tuation. 'nae iapre11ion wa1 
created that I1taol hAd hehaved coward• the friandli•~t power ever known by tha 
J~wifth people in a ~•oner inr.ommen•urate with the trftdit!on of frlendoh1p, and 
with the value■ and 1nt.:1reata 11harod by tbe two people•·• Apart fr:0111 the 
bitternea1 and sadnoaa which were reflftc-ted in tu Mnunhtr,tinn'• ■tend, a 
111eflia c•pdsn P.xtre111ely hosUle to Ilraal dm,eloped. Th• pdM llinisr.er and 
the vice premier held urgent con11ultation11 which wr• jo:lned lty the defense 
111ni1t11r iDllllfldbtaly upon his raturn to Israel fro■ abrond. Th• threa 
per■ on~1e• explained to the Inner c~hioet, to the public ~n many occae1ona, 11nd 
co this co•ittea. that they view t~~~ .. qlvftR as the rNmber1 of a CIIIA■ all of 
whoa 1here responsibility for all t!J! deci111iona taken, th•y did not ~ke any 
obj111ct1nn or p11t torwllrd any rHervRt:lon al-out any of l thoaa decJ.■jon• ].. Our 
peru1al of their stata~•nt• before thi• co111111:l.tt~• turn• up not. 11 stn,le crar.k or 
inipe~i•ent in the approAch or atrar.egy they rAcomm,n~~d. 

The urgency of the prHsura exert"d by che U.t,;. to clarify the 11atter. i:01-.ther 
with saliant indication• tlv11t the political echelon in t:,e u. 3. 1incarely wiehad 
to contain and ntillgn:l.ah tho blil:r.e, comp111lled the three milli■ t111r" to turn their 
attention urgen;ly to the A~trican front. T~ that end a ~3...,.itt~A of 
exll~lnation w~~- e•c~bl13h~ (Avriha~ Sb~Jom, ~4 n11ri 8•r-On at!d lawyer,~~ C11p1) 
to clarify and,deal with the prol)lema cre"ted with the U,S. ' •. 

t ~. ·, l h1inn:lq on 22 April [ sic J internal conaulc11t iona and l:KChftRIJH ol 111H111agee 

cook place with the secretary of ac11ta f.n an ~ffort to cttl19 the Adalniatr11tion 
and r~ch COO()Af/lt:f.on. A key milestone in the evolution of the I•raeli atrat■1y• 
va1 a ~•raation held in the ~~rly morning hour, (30 Nove•b~r-1 Dacn~er) vhan 
Secretary of State Shultz phoned Pri111e Minlacer Peres. In this t~lk tha pri111 
mini■ ter clarified the following point• to Mr. Shultz: (a) Pollard••• an 
ahe~rant eitu■tlon, th~-political echelon vae unaware of the matter, an' 
unauthorized initiative had taken place without any official approval 

·'---- •~•taoever; (b) is~ael undertake• full cooperation; (c) Israel v.lll allow free 
-----6cce1a to th• Israelis involved; (d) Isra~l will punish tho8e re■poaaible; (e) 

the unit whose personnel invotved themselves in tho operation will be disbanded; 
(f) Israel will nturn doc:u111■nts it received da l10Ua1:d, 

Theae co11td.t1111!nte ..,era not unre:!iletved, The pt"i1ua '11ini11t.mr requaated that th• ' 
interpretation to be i,la~l:!d on hb undertakin1$3 be dhc•1ned betwe~n Hanan• 

l ....... __ ~_he_r_-o_u:_~c:: _;;~~~_!_. o_f_· _r_ar.aal, and Undertecr~tarv of State Ar111ac .. 111t on behdf nf 
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. Stand of Co•itt•• Members Ben-!lissar, Olmert: and Hagens. 

-------.-------------------------.. --~--------- ' .. 
On the night betve'en. 30 November and l Deceiaber· 1985, at 0330 houi-■, Seer.tar:, 
of State Ceor1• Shultz phoned Priu Hinieter Shillon Perea. During the!r 
coavereation Mr. Perte agreed to apell out Israel'• mde1 of cooperatioo.witl\ . ~ 
the U.S. 1D thil affair. At the conclusion of the conversation, Mr. Para• 1•v•. 
undartekinge in a number of subject11 

l. The Israelis involved in the affair would be questioned bf• repruentat1ff 
of the U.S. 1overn11ent. 

2. The Pollard docwHnte would be returned to the _u. s. 

3. The Scientific Liai•on Unit would be disbanded.and its peraonnel diaat,aed. 

4. Di•clplinary ••••urea would be taken qainat those reaponsibl• for the 
affair. 

tMra ia no doubt that it _wae the d1.1t7 of the larael government to propoH 
.~i-diate cooperat:f.011· 1tith the u.s. government 1~ tM vaka of Pollard'• 
axpoeur•; ia'additton to• full ,and unequivocal apolOfY• • The Urcuaatan~•• of 
Pollard'• expoeure, the juatifled Aarican outra1e 1 the fear of a ,,~iou blo• 
to t1rae1-u.s. relationsi all th••• ju1tifted an approach of cooperation on thi1 
■u&ject. The que1tion i1 what ahould hAva beea the man11er ancl •cope of the 
cooperation Israel ehould have propoaed. Prime Mtnteter Shi■on Par••'• 
a1r••••at to return the docuunt1 which had been hrouaht b1 Pollard,•• 
fundauntally wrong and cauaed extremely seriou1 da■age. 'Ib1H docuMntt 
coa1tituted the ba11s which led to Pollard'• conviction and the life aentenc• 
i~o,ed on ht■• and thia despite an Israeli contention ,that ea Aaericao 
coaiait■ent exi■ted not to uae them a1a1n•t Pollard •. The incomplete ability to 
UYI up to the undertaking to rat11rn tha documents cau••d a crlel• of confidence 
&.twe•n the u.s. and I ■rael. 

·, 
.i' 

,:; Thti pri• minister did not heed the advice of thoee 'llho were deal!n1 with the 
11aCtar on bl• behalf, vho believed that it was not po•aibla to retum the•• 
doeuaent•• 

~ deci•ion to return the document• waa not preceded by any discussion within 
the framework of the miniaterial tea or in aay other foru■• W• found no 
miautea of any advance consultation, meeting, diacue1ion or even telephoN 
conv•r•atlon in which thit IINlVe vaa •1reed on. 

Oft the day following th• convere«tion, the priMe miniat•r reported it to ttt. , 
miniaterial ta ... aad the7 n••ented to it. The mini ■ ter•' •~•ent to the pri■e: 
■inletar'• decision was 11 1ustake. even though in the circu■atancea, after Mr'.,('· 
Paro■ had 1iv('ri 'an undertaking to Mi:. Shultz. ~hia couli'. not be retracte-4. 
without cau■ing even greater. damage; We do not ac:c:ept th• contention that aa •. 
undartakin1 to return to documents wae unavoidable. The c:oop•.ution with the 
u.s. va1 vital and involved also other channel• of activity. Had ShillDft Perea 
directed that a proper inveatigatton be conducted, as he wa1 obliled to do, ha 
unclou~edl7 would have refrained from propoaiag that the docmaau ba., r1turned • 
and perhaf'e even have refused to peruait cha q1.1eation1na of the Iaraella,tnvolvod 
in. the affair. But Mr, P@re• refrained fro• ordering an inveatigation or 
euaiainc the requisite dacsila,· thereby becoaing entangled in an undertaklna he 
aho~• navar have given. 

• 

_ .. .,, .. , 
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5. Th• u.1. Adlllni•tratlon, and particularly the J:1.~11 al.aunt,· in it, 
attributed great importance to Israel'• undertakias •to puni■h tha culpdt•·• • 
Here the Aaertcan tntereat tocuaed on tvo persona: on Rafi Kitaa aftd at a later 
atac• on Avi'•• Sella. Rafi !iten wu appointed director of th• lar1uc-­
ecoeo■ic eaterpri•• in Ierael, 'llith the American, apru■lng th•i~ prot•■t• 

6. S•veral aonth• _ ago gre_at 'pu.blictty waa .11v.11. to the 1~tentioa to proaote Col •. 
Sal!,■ ·both 11" r.nk and- in po,c. Thi■ tt•p caused btttar-.a610 ·•oa,Sd!ha Aaert.c .. n· 
people and Ute Alleric•s:. public· wu voclferouely outrapd. t.1 adclidl 1aaolc co 
tnjur, end despite the·red liCht ••t off by th• Aaecicaa •baaauor in bia talt. 
1a Jeruul•• a statement wa■ 1■■ued on tha appolnt.Mttt of Col. A.Yi'• Sella•• 
coaaander of the Tel Nof ha••• Meanwhile Col. Avi'•• Sella r•1ped fn• bi•• 
po,t u 'l'•l Nof coa■ll\der •. Bil reaignation calmed th• atora, ■ltuatloa. -. 

W. aspreH our satisfaction "1th Sella'• rae1gnatioll froa hie poet, but •· · • .. :•.· 
cannot ignore the ■!,take of D•fenae Hiaiater Rabin in appointing hia under 
the•• circwutance,. 
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The pou1!:,.i.L.tt/ _thnt •i•!~·. ~~~ ~1\ ii.ll.3~ h4r:1urd the ver■ ion 11~c•.1: i'o.l.Lud'• 
\ volunteerJ.ng ns though it :,;:H'C-1 t r 1.1thful, .!.~ r.?xt raniely i>oor, for tha ahaple . 
~ reason that thts 'lt!?'S f.ot, hud ~.:-; ,~ner. L'I th~Ellt dnya lato1c. tt ls trapou.lbl• 

~. that on 22. 11.as Mr. Peres h4r:1'1t'd 3 venf.on cl',<tt 1o1a3 not in exlatencit. .. . ..,;. 

Mr. Per•• 11dn.tafoa that 'Rafi !!tan toot part in the rneetin1 11t wtd.ch ha".wa•· 
~- v; given the .llilleading roport, Eltnn's pre,iance in fa~~- rdnforca1 rredsely a .. 

~- version oppo.dte to thet of Pores'•• • • . -

~ 
..) 

;, 
UIMP.:DlAT!t'l Pollard was dXpose~, !it•n ■ tate.d. th.t!lvh~,~med lull 
reaponsibillty tor the atfair, He emph11&ized and ·te ... •di>nHlzed that no_· 
political level hnd known Jetdla relating to Polla,:d peuonall.y. 

Under c~ase circum~tances, what reaeon ~ould Etean ltdve had eo id.1taa~ th• 
political echelon in a 111actec wl\ich could ba of l\o benoUt to h1:u.-lf7 

-

Moreover, Eitan on 21. 11.35 ,ubmitted a ctoc,1111.nt· contdnina an taraeU. v•ralon. 
It 19 beyond under•tandin1 why Eitan would prepare •\&CR • docul!\Ht vb:lle et: th• 
•••• time lending a hAnd to the d1s■aadnfttion of a •~o~y torhlch would ~i1lead the 

, _ political level., whil•. he waa &1111ult•neoudy 111aktn1 every effort to cooperate 
• __ and even _to~ •uufl\e rupQndblllty personally. 

The version which hi>lds chat H-r. Peres VH mialad il'l this matter appear• totally 
unre•aonable. HR. PERES COULD AND SHOULD HAVE ICNOWN EL\ClLY UKA.T RAD OCCURlUD 
AND UNDill WHAT CIRCUMSTANCES f'Ot.LAID HAD Bl!N RICRUtTID 10 TH! SW, .\HD TO THC 
B!ST OF OU& IMPRESSION, ON 28.11.85 he indeed ahould havft kno~n tbie ■ (laphaaie 
h1e ·-, aad alsehwn in the origtn.d. J • 

Se Jl co1111111t1:ee 111embera asked ,.,hy Mr. Perl!■ would want to nlace ·auch a crude 
ve4 ,,gn which could to easily b~ refuted. 

On the surface this question aound• reasonable. Actually, it h n~t. Hr.· Per•• 
did not in tha lease pretend .:o claim that Isr~cl could al'ld ahould r■veal all • 
the details of the at,,ry to the Ar.1ert.c1ns, :ind indud there is no doudt that it 
vq essential to cr,scalliza ~ .easonable, albeit partial. ver,ton, 

The quHl:10n u.s: ~mich ,·er:,ion 1.10uH be l"On.,eyed to Shulcd "(:, ParH save him 
the only v .. ri;fon tha.: w11• l:?':mght to h.ti :~ne·.1l•!cit•• 'l'ho het ci,n thil •1■r•ion 
was refuted .:Ion not attuc to thol fact r.hat ~!r, l?•!rH ~lid f\Ot k.1ow it wa• a 
fabric:ated11tot'y, "tt is only ~r,;>ot th;it-. t.: w,v; an ~naucc11&11:'ul invant.l.c:a. 

One could for11iv11 Nr, Pera:1 t:~• uae of ,;his story, \ihkn 'hmi no proapect of 
1uceeedin3, had ha not sou;ht i:c> pre111anc it n a eruth:u.l at,,ry to che member• 
of the Kneaaat committ■•• 

. What is the rue on chat :•lr, t>a-ce111 scumbled in 1peaktt111 ur.t:\!1:il ~:> th• KneHet 
comittae? Varioi;;• •x;,l,mat:!.ona coul.i be add1Jced, l:,ut 1t it noc mar ?iuf.ine11• co 
analyze Mr, l1uoes 1 3 u10.:ivati,:m in this utt.ar. 

,. 
Ultiuttlly, 1;~.ert is ~c ·lou'oc ";hat M,:-. Pe'!'H misl11d the Xn11s11a;; co:nsa"'cta. and 
pl'ovidecl it with 11 r3?nr:. •,;h.i.ch wai1 n,,c true. .J ~t . 

' l 
In hh defenH, it •,1ilt he r:<11:.:lleli, Mr,· Peru ciaiiit.:ained that un 21. 11 he- did 
not ytt_90w ~he crueh. hence ha erred tn good faith., 

We vould vary m•Jcn Hkc to ila.i.ll!V4!1 o:ni• C')ntant!c-n becauH of cha 3raat resp.ace 
we, ~old for ~r. t>eres -,nd hi_s t:iah position. 

. If Perea's contention 1~ corract ::hat on za. 11°.8.5 he di.t Mt yet know tha truth, 
'-------l'hen a vary grav• q•Jestton ar1.ue r~atdin! the l'\&?;u-re of :,ia functioning. lit , 

prime :n.inisc•~ -- !f e 1Jeek 3fter P~ll4rd's •x~osur3 Pet~i did not knov tha 
detail• of the epiooda. 

• 
On• way or cha o~her, Hr. Paras could and waa DUTY•BOUND :;:i ir.no'll ch-,. \lau.11s •. 
That he did not '.cnow t hGm at this a cage, le these ci r.:uilli- ':a11cu ~ .tnd while he 
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Americans. The finger soon pointed toward televangelist 
Jimmy Swaggart, the current industry leader in terms of 
viewership. Swaggart hotly denied orchestrating a back­
room takeover of PTL, and his position drew the support 
of all but one of his fellow televangelists. From atop his 
prayer tower, Oral Roberts condemned Swaggart, saying, 
"Somehow Satan has put something in your heart that 
you're better than anybody else." 

O F ALL the TV preachers, none seemed to revel in his 
own success more than Jim Bakker. He grew up in 

humble surroundings. His father was a machine repairman 
in a piston-ring factory in Michigan. Jim's grades were 
generally poor, but he was outgoing-by his final year at 
Muskegon High School, he was class president. In 1959 he 
enrolled at North Central Bible College, where he decided 
on a life of Evangelicalism. It was there that he met 
18-year-old Tammy Faye La Valley, whom he married in 
1961. He was ordained an Assemblies of God minister, and 
Jim and Tammy spent the next five years crusading 
throughout the country. 

In 1965 they met the Rev. Pat Robertson, who offered 
them a job with the fledgling CBN. In their first on-air 
appearance they hosted a Christian puppet show. Jim 
quickly moved up to become co-host with Robertson of 
"The 700 Club." In 1974, after a two-year stint with a 
California-based Christian network, Bakker moved to 
Charlotte, North Carolina, which would become his per­
manent base of operations. PTL began as a small regional 
ministry run out of a modest glass office building in Char­
lotte, but soon grew dramatically. In fact, PTL grew so fast 
that several times the operation was certifiably "over­
extended," in the parlance of the accountants, who began 
to have a bigger say in the ministry's day-to-day opera­
tions. By the time he stepped down from PTL, Bakker's 
Heritage USA complex covered 2,300 acres, employed 
nearly 2,000 people, and contained his television head­
quarters, a luxury hotel, a shopping mall, a home for single 
mothers, and the third most-visited amusement park in the 
country. 

As a fund-raiser, Bakker made it clear that his personal 
reputation was on the line, if not his future well-being, a 
technique only recently discovered by Oral Roberts. The 
Bakkers weren't afraid to bare their emotions to the view­
ing public. Tammy cried regularly on the show, and Jim 
often developed a paperweight-sized lump in his throat 
when he spoke about his future plans for Heritage USA. 
They were very ordinary folks with very big dreams, and 
viewers opened their hearts, and, whenever they could, 
their wallets. PTL reported $129 million in revenues last 
year. 

The end came swiftly, though. Jim, who would often 
say to his followers, "The Lord has us on a roller-coaster 
ride, and we're holding on for dear life," lost his grip on 
the PTL ministry almost overnight. Earlier this month, 
Tammy left the show after it was revealed that she had 
become addicted to prescription drugs. Then came the 
revelations of Jim's adulterous encounter in 1980, fol-
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lowed by the Falwell "friendly takeover." 

For its part, the Falwell organization insists that it is 
reluctantly playing the part of white knight. "This more 
than doubles the headaches," Falwell spokesman Mark de 
Moss told the Washington Post. "There's a big investment to 
protect and now we have the responsibility to protect 
it .... I've hesitated to use the word 'takeover.' I'd rather 
use the word 'rescue.'" 

Still, the new Falwell-Bakker entity has combined reve­
nues estimated at over $250 million, which has certainly 
got to make the competition sit up and take notice. That 
includes Oral Roberts, who seemed to be taking a page out 
of the Jim Bakker book of fund-raising when he revealed 
God's ultimatum earlier this year. Not to worry, though.'A 
Florida millionaire, Jerry Collins, has already made up the 
million-plus difference Roberts needs to reach his goal and 
save his skin. Barring some unforeseen act of God, Roberts 
will climb down from his 200-foot-tall prayer tower on 
April Fools' Day and face the TV cameras with a wink and 
a smile. 

The victory, however, may turn out to be a Pyrrhic one 
for Roberts, just as Jim Bakker's success proved to be. 
Lately Roberts seems to be assuming that he operates in a 
moral vacuum-no claim is too preposterous, no pitch too 
brazen, if it's done in the name of God. But this sort of 
high-stakes approach carries with it the risk of rapidly 
diminishing returns. Even Roberts's credulous audience 
can only fall for it so many times. In the end, the TV 
evangelists will share the fate of the big-time corporations 
they've tried to emulate. The strong will survive; the bank­
rupt will be bought out. 

TOM MCNICHOL 

Tom McNichol is a Washington writer. 

POLLARD I 

OFFICIAL ROGUES 

ISRAELI PRIME MINISTER Yitzhak Shamir still ada­
mantly insists that the recruitment of an American citi­

zen, Jonathan Jay Pollard, as a spy for Israel was a "rogue 
operation." As he put it on March 11: "The State of Israel 
has no connection with Pollard or his family. The State: of 
Israel did not hire him and did not assign him espionage 
missions." This is arrant nonsense. • 

Jonathan Pollard was a civilian analyst and researcher 
for the U.S. Navy. In June 1984 he was assigned to the 
Anti-Terrorist Alert Center (ATAC) of the Naval Investiga­
tive Service's Threat Analysis Division. Initially a watch 
officer, monitoring the general flow of information on 
terrorism passing through the ATAC, Pollard became a spe­
cialist responsible for analyzing classified information 



1 

concerning potential terrorist activities in the Caribbean 
and the continental United States. 

More important, Pollard had both a Top Secret clearance 
and a clearance for Sensitive Compartmented Information 
(SCI)-data on sophisticated U.S. technical collection sys­
tems as well as the fruits of their collection activities. And 
through his computer, he had access to data banks and 
"libraries" of highly sensitive Top Secret and SCI material. 
Anyone with authorized access to those information pools 
could query them about anything-not just information 
dealing with one's official duties. Pollard also had clear­
ance to enter and leave his work area without having his 
briefcase searched. In short, he was optimally situated to 
be a spy. 

Prone to fantasies, Pollard seems to have seen himself 
as a hero in a Leon Uris novel. After his arrest in Novem­
ber 1985, he told U.S. authorities that as early as 1982 he 
had decided to become an Israeli intelligence agent. In 
the spring of 1984, he arranged to meet Col. Aviem 
Sella-a celebrated Israeli air force officer then on sab­
batical at New York University. When Pollard volun­
teered to use his Navy position to serve Israel, Sella 
quickly accepted and starting running him-very profes­
sionally-as a spy. 

SELLA AND POLLARD soon began holding secret 
meetings-at least one of them in an Israeli diplomat's 

home in Maryland to which Pollard brought classified U.S. 
documents. While these were being copied, Sella went over 
Pollard's performance and gave him new instructions-in 

, which Sella emphasized Israel's interest in Top Secret and 
SCI documents, and also made clear that Israel did not need 
or want additional U.S. information on terrorism. 

In November 1984, at Sella's direction, Pollard went to 
Paris, where he and Anne Henderson (then his fiancee, 
now his wife) spent a week being royally entertained. 
Sella introduced Pollard to his new case officer- Josef 
"Yossi" Yagur, a scientific attache in Israel's New York 
consulate-and to Rafael Eitan, a renowned senior Israeli 
intelligence officer who headed Lekem, a scientific and 
technical intelligence organization in the Ministry of De­
fense, for which Sella, Yagur, and now Pollard were all 
working. 

The three Israelis gave Pollard additional instructions, 
again emphasizing that Israel didn't need information on 
terrorism or counterterrorism, and describing in detail the 
specific weapons systems and other subjects on which the 
Israelis did want him to obtain highly classified U.S. docu­
ments. During these Paris conversations, Pollard was re­
peatedly told that he would be "taken care of" if appre­
hended, with Eitan stressing that any U.S. actions against 
Pollard could be "contained." Eitan told Pollard he was 
"one of us." 

It was agreed that Pollard would be paid $1,500 a month 
for his efforts-in effect, doubling his U.S. Navy salary. 
The Israelis also gave Pollard over $10,000 in cash. This and 
other money not only covered Pollard's and Henderson's 
expenses in Paris, but also paid for a jaunt through France, 

Italy, Austria, and Germany. In addition, Sella gave Anne 
Henderson a $7,000 diamond and sapphire ring he had seen 
her admiring in a Paris shop window. 

A few weeks later, Yagur and Pollard met, as planned, at 
the Maryland home of the Israeli diplomat. There Pollard 
delivered several suitcases of U.S. classified documents to 
Yagur, took his $1,500, and met another Israeli-identified 
only as "Uzi"-who, with Yagur, gave Pollard new in­
structions, establishing a procedure that Pollard followed 
until his arrest 11 months later. 

Every other Friday, Pollard delivered his documents to 
the Washington, D.C., apartment of an Israeli Embassy 
secretary, lrit Erb, where they were copied in time for 
Pollard to pick them up on Sunday and return them to his 
office on Monday-before anyone could notice they were 
missing. Once a month Pollard met Yagur at Erb's apart­
ment. During those meetings, Yagur would pay Pollard, 
review his production and performance, and give him fresh 
instructions. 

This got a bit complicated, since by early 1985 Pollard 
was delivering thousands of pages of Top Secret, SCI, and 
other highly classified documents. Yagur's reviews, how­
ever, were meticulous, and his "tasking" both detailed 
and explicit. He described specific information and even 
specific U.S. documents-about which he seemed well 
informed-that he wanted Pollard to provide. Yagur also 
repeated that he did not want Pollard to waste time on 
terrorism or counterterrorism. Yagur was clearly im­
pressed with Pollard, and in early 1985 readily agref:d 
when Pollard asked that his salary be raised to s2,500 
per month. 

In the summer of 1985, Yagur told Pollard that Eitan 
wanted to see him again, in Israel. Pollard was about to get 
married, and the Israelis picked up the expenses for a 
three-week wedding-honeymoon trip to Israel and Eu­
rope, where the Pollards stayed in the best hotels and 
traveled from Venice to Zurich in a $700 private compart­
ment on the Orient Express. 

IN ISRAEL, the mysterious "Uzi" hosted a dinner for 
Pollard, Yagur, Sella, and their wives; and Pollard, ac­

companied by Yagur, had several meetings with Eitan, 
then hospitalized in Tel Aviv. Reassuring Pollard again 
that Israel would protect him if he were caught, Eitan and 
Yagur pressed Pollard for even greater quantities of highly 
classified documents. When Pollard voiced concern about 
the added risk of detection, Eitan told Yagur to give Pollard 
an additional $2,000-on top of the more than sl0,000 for 
his trip. He also told Pollard that in addition to his regular 
monthly salary, the Israelis would establish a foreign bank 
account for him into which they would pay s30,000 a year 
for the next ten years. 

When Pollard returned to Washington in late August 
1985, his production sharply increased, He was impelled 
to work even harder when, a few weeks later, Yagur 
showed him an Israeli passport, with Pollard's picture on 
it, issued in the name of Danny Cohen. Pollard was sup­
posed to use this when he eventually "returned" to Israel. 
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.. Yagur also had Pollard make out signature cards for a 
foreign bank account in "Danny Cohen's'' name, telling 
Pollard that $30,000 had already been credited to that ac­
count, and reminding him that an additional $30,000 
would be deposited each year for the rest of the decade. 
This was a highly professional move. It got Pollard to 
increase his already substantial, increasingly risky es­
pionage activity, and left him thoroughly hooked, since 
he could not get access to "Danny Cohen's" bank account 
without the Israeli passport-which the Israelis con­
trolled. 

POLLARD'S intense activity proved to be his undo­
ng. Perhaps sensitized by intelligence-related publici­

ty during 1985-particularly publicity about John Walker 
and his Navy espionage ring-Pollard's Navy colleagues 
began to wonder why he kept asking for highly classified 
documents that had nothing to do with his official re­
sponsibilities. Some of these colleagues voiced their con­
cerns to the Naval Investigative Service, which contacted 
the FBI. 

When Pollard was first approached by NIS and FBI 
agents on November 18, 1985, and even when he was 
arrested on November 21---driving away from the Israeli 
Embassy, where he and his wife had unsuccessfully sought 
asylum-he dissembled to protect his Israeli intelligence 
colleagues. Sella, Yagur, and Irit Erb-whom Pollard and 
his wife had alerted-made it back to Israel before the 
United States became aware of their role in this operation 
or could do anything to stop them. 

In December 1985 U.S. Attorney Joseph DiGenova, 
State Department legal adviser Abraham Sofaer, and 
Mark Richard of the Justice Department went to Israel to 
investigate the Pollard affair. They came away ernpty­
handed. While professing a desire to cooperate, the Israe­
lis were deliberately evasive. They gave the Americans 
some, but far from all, of the U.S. documents Pollard had 
passed, and they masked Col. Aviem Sella and his role in 
the operation. 

~ 

The Pollard case was not discreet surveillance of the type 
that all governments keep on even their closest allies. It 
was the wholesale theft of ultrasensitive, highly classified 
internal U.S. documents that in their raw, "un-redacted," 
state the United States could never show to any foreign 

I 
power without grave damage to its own security. Pollard 
gave the Israelis approximately 360 cubic feet of such doc­
uments. Some outlined U.S. military capabilities, training ' 
plans, and projected movements. Others contained sensi-
tive intelligence on a variety of foreign nations and topics, 

ceived and conducted by a small handful of overzealous 
officers acting on their own. Consider the number of Israeli 
officials, official facilities, and equipment purchased with 
official funds that became involved, in the United States 
and in Israel: Rafi Eitan, Colonel Sella, "Yossi" Yagur, Irit 
Erb, the mysterious "Uzi," the Maryland home of the un­
named Israeli Embassy official, Erb's Washington apart­
ment, the high-speed copying equipment that was re­
quired in the United States, the courier facilities that got 
the Pollard-provided documents back to Israel, the secure 
storage space that must have been required to house the 
documents, the staffs necessary to screen and analyze 
them. 

An operation of this magnitude, political sensitivity, and 
intelligence value could not have been run for well over a 
year without the knowledge and support of quite a few 
Israelis-including, at an absolute minimum, officials at 
the highest levels of the Ministry of Defense. Not counting 
over $10,000 worth of jewelry obtained for Pollard's wife, 
by the time of Pollard's arrest in November 1985 the Israe­
lis had paid him around $50,000 in cash for his spying, plus 
the $30,000 they deposited in "Danny Cohen's'' foreign 
bank account. If this operation had run for the full decade 
envisaged, Pollard stood to receive an additional $540,000 
or so. No intelligence service gets that kind of money out of 
petty cash. Moreover, most governments rarely supply a 
passport for a non-citizen, particularly one in a false name. 

I 
I seriously doubt if any Israeli intelligence service, on its 
own, could document Jonathan Pollard as Israeli citizen 
Danny Cohen. That must have required the blessing of 
senior officials in both the Foreign and the Interior 
Ministries. 

Neither Aviem Sella nor Josef Yagur alone could have 
given Pollard the kind of detailed direction that he received 
from both of them. Those tasking instructions must have 
been prepared by a staff in Israel whose members were 
aware of Pollard's past production, of everything Israel 
already knew about the subjects on which Pollard was 

! directed to supply documents, the exact information gaps 
the Israeli government wanted to fill, and even the specific 
classified U.S. documents that the Israelis wanted. Such a 
staff would have had to have been housed somewhere, 
presumably in the Defense Ministry, and someone quite 
senior would have had to supervise it. 

I N ISRAEL, the sensitivity and sheer volume of Pollard's 
production must have made the screening and handling 

of these documents a brisk cottage industry. The Israelis 
would have had to solve the problem faced by any intelli­
gence service with a prolific, valuable, but ultrasensitive 
source: how to exploit that source's production to the 
fullest without compromising it. This takes the right kind 
of people, a fair number of them, plus high-level support 
and backing. 

in such detail that a professional analyst could discern 
what U.S. collection systems must have been used to ac­
quire these data, the capabilities and limitations of those 
systems, and even, in some cases, the likely identities of 
human agents. No wonder Defense Secretary Caspar 
Weinberger told the judge who sentenced the Pollards: ''It , 
is difficult for me ... to conceive of a greater harm to 
national security." 

It is inconceivable that at least some Pollard-provided 
intelligence, with special restriction markings, was not 
provided to Israel's top political leaders, who must 

! have known-at a minimum-that the Israelis had an The Pollard operation simply could not have been coh-
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ultrasensitive covert penetration of the U.S. defense estab-

/

lishment. The intelligence provided by Pollard reportedly 
helped to facilitate Israel's air raid on PLO headquarters in 
Tunis on October 1, 1985. That raid had to have been 

\ approved, in advance, by the prime minister and his inner 
r 
Cabinet-at least some of whom would have wanted as-
surances about the solidity of the intelligence on which 
that raid's planning was based. 

SINCE POLLARD'S arrest, none of the Israelis in­
volved has suffered in the slightest. lrit Erb and Jo­

sef Yagur returned hastily to Israel, but without any 
apparent damage to their careers. The Lekem was dis­
banded, at least in name, and Rafael Eitan retired from 
government service; but he was of retirement age any­
way, and in poor health. Furthermore, he was given one 
of the most lucrative, prestigious post-retirement posi­
tions the government could bestow: the chairmanship of 

( Israel Chemicals, Israel's largest state-run company. As 
\_ for Sella, the government took pains to shield his very 

identity, not just Sella himself, from American investiga­
tors, Since then, his career has flourished. The day before 
a U.S. federal grand jury indicted him for espionage, and 
two days before Pollard was sentenced to life imprison­
ment, the Israeli government announced that Sella would 
be the new commander of Tel Nof, Israel's second largest 
air base. 

From an intelligence standpoint, the Pollard operation 
was professionally brilliant and a great success for every­
one involved-except Pollard and his wife. Politically, 
however, the operation was lunacy. Foreign Minister Shi­
mon Peres has asserted that there are no more Pollards. 
Defense Minister Yitzhak Rabin has been even more force­
ful: "Israel does not carry on espionage activities in the 
United States. There are no Americans or non-Americans 
who serve as spies for Israel against the United States." 
Israeli Cabinet officers could hardly be expected to say 
anything else. In this case, Israel is dangerously undermin­
ing its credibility by continuing to insist that the Pollard 
case was a "rogue operation." 

If Israel's leaders truly value their good relations with 
the United States, they will drop these untenable denials, 
even at the cost of some political heartburn at home. If any 
Israeli intelligence service is using Americans as covert 
assets or agents, Israel should make sure that such opera­
tions are terminated immediately, and that their case offi­
cers are quietly brought back home. Any Americans in­
volved should be told that their covert ties with Israel are 
permanently severed. For Israel, no intelligence "success" 
against the United States can possibly be worth the dam­
age to the U.S.-Israeli relationship that another "rogue 
operation" would inflict. 

GEORGE A. CARVERJR. 

George A. Carver Jr., a professional CIA intelligence officer 
for 26 years, is now John M. Olin Senior Fellow at the 
Center for Strategic and International Studies. 

POLLARD II 

I SPY, You SPY 

THERE'S A NEW wrinkle in the story of espionage 
between the United States and Israel. In recent years, 

U.S. intelligence has occasionally "planted" agents in Vol­
unteers for Israel, a program in which thousands of private 
American citizens, mostly Jews, have spent about a month 
informally serving in the Israel Defense Forces. These vol­
unteers perform menial but essential chores on army bases 
across the country. Israel gets cheap labor, and the volun­
teers feel they have made a personal contribution to Israel's 
security. But according to two well-placed U.S. sources, 
elements in the American intelligence community (not 
necessarily the Central Intelligence Agency, I was told) 
thought that agents posing as "volunteers" could pick up 
some useful tidbits of information about Israel's military. 
It is unclear whether they managed to do so. 

It now seems that such spying among friends is more 
common than citizens of the two countries might have 
thought. Of course, the major revelation in the ongoing 
saga of U.S.-Israeli spying was the Jonathan Jay Pollard 
affair-in which an American Jew was convicted of pass­
ing massive amounts of classified U.S. intelligence infor­
mation to Israel. That crisis recently re-erupted with Isra­
el's decision to promote air force Col. Aviem Sella, who 
was indicted by a U.S. grand jury on charges that he "ran" 
Pollard. 

And the Volunteers for Israel revelation comes only a 
few days after Republican Senator David Durenberger of 
Minnesota, the former chairman of the Senate Intelligence 
Committee, let slip a few details about a more serious 
operation. Speaking to American Jewish political activists 
in Palm Beach, Florida, on March 15, Ourenberger said that 
the CIA had "changed the rules of the game" in 1982 by 
authorizing an operation to penetrate Israel's military­
intelligence community. Ourenberger said that this deci­
sion apparently led to Israel's decision to run Pollard in 
Washington. 

Six days after Durenberger's remarks, a Washington Post 
report by John Goshko and Bob Woodward confirmed that 
the United States has spied on Israel. It quoted two sources 
in Washington as saying that an Israeli military officer 
"who was unhappy with the Israeli invasion of Lebanon 
volunteered to provide limited, classified information to 
the U.S. government." The story says both governments 
had pledged not to recruit spies in each other's country, but 
also acknowledge that they can't refuse unsolicited "walk­
ins" -such as Pollard himself-who volunteer potentially 
sensitive information. 

According to the Post story, the Washington sources said 
the officer gave the United States "classified material" that 
was "not dramatic but useful" in a relationship that lasted 
until 1984. One of the Post's sources said he didn't know 
why the relationship was terminated. But Durenberger 
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HQOA WASHDC//SASA 
DI A WASHOC// 
USCINCCENT HACDILL AFB 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY NICOSIA IMMEDIATE 
AHEMBASSY BEIRUT IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY RIYADH IMMEDIATE 
USIS CAIRO ltlllEDIATE 
USHISSION USUN NEW YORK IMHEOIATE 
AHCONSUL JERUSALEM IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY DAHASCUS IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY AMMAN IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY MAHANA IMMEDIATE 
AMCONSUL JEDDAH IHMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY KUWAIT IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY LONDON IMMEDIATE 
AHEMBASSY ROME IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY RABAT IMMEDIATE 

UNCLAS SECTION 82 OF SS TELAVIV 97329 

STATE FOR NEA/IAI, INR, SP, PIM; R; FOR PIRC, PIF, PIP, 
P/FII, P/FN, P/11, HA. 
NEA; ROHE ANO JERUSALEM FOR VOA; VOA NEWS/CA. 
VOA fOR HORT Sl11TH; BIB FOR IIAL TEA ROBERTS. 
AMEMBASSY ROHE FOR MFO. JERUSALEM FOR !CD GREEN. 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN FDR POLAO AMB. LANE ANO PAO. 
MACDILL FOR USIA ADVISER BRIAN BELL. 
STATE FOR NEA/IAI WILCOX, NEA/P BERGER. 

E. 0. 123S&: NIA 
SUBJECT: MEDIA REACTION/PRESS REVIEW, P1AY 28, 1987 

l. AFTERMATH OF POLLARO PROBE REPORTS: 

"ll. S.: INVOLVED PARTIES SHOULD BE PUNISHED" CYEDIOTl, 
"WASHINGTON: DAMAGE CAUSED BY POLLARD AFFAIR ~ON'T GO 
AIIAY SOON" (MAARIV), "U.S. STILL ll~NTS ACTION" 
(JERUSALEM ,osn, "ISRAEL IIOll'T GIVE U.S. SECRET 

SECTION" (JERUSALEM POSTl. "PERES, RABIN, SHAMIR AND 
ARENS HUST GO" ~A'ARETZ EDITORIAL), "IIE MIGHT START 
LOOKIIIG FOR ANOTHER SCANDAL; THIS ONE IS DEAD" USRAEL 
RAO IO COMMENTARY). 

2. INTERNATIONAL PEACE CONFERENCE: 

"THE KEY TO M-E PROGRESS NOii LIES IN MOSCOW" UERUSALEM 
POST COMNENTARYI. 
DI SUPPORT I VE TEXT: 

I. AFTER11ATH OF POL LARO PROBE REPORTS: 

I. JERUSALEM POST WASH·, NG TON CORRESPONDENT WOLF Bll TZER 
REPORTED: "U.S. LAW-ENFORC[HENT AUTHORITIES SAID 
YESTERDAY TNAT THE RELEASE OF T\10 ISRAELI REPORTS ON 
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THE POLLARI SI''\' SCANDAL \IOULO NOT HAVE ANY EF'rECT ON 
THEIR CONTl!iJl!l'ii INiESTIGATION ANO PROSECUTl01l CF THE 
CASE. THEY i.110 THAT l'H£Y WERE CONTINUING THEIR LEGAL 
PROCESS OF llfTING TH[ IMMUNITY FROM CRIMINAL 
PROSECUTIOII !*IER GIANTED TO THRE~ UNINDICTED ISRAELI 
CO-CONSPIRI.TliS, RAFAti. ~ITAN, YOSEF YAGUR AND IRIT 
ERB. THEY Iii.SIi ~ID Yf:,!RDAV THAT THEY IIERE CO~TINUING 
THEIR INVE~Tl~TICN lci,O ALLEGAT-.lONS THAT POLLARD MAY 
HAVE BEEN PA!!'! Of A ea~-'l!ER ! SRP.EL I SPY NET\IOPK 
OPERATING IN lllE U.S ... , THE U.S. ALSO ISSUED A SHARP 
REMINDER T"AT IT IIANTEll ISRAEL IS INVOLVED IN THE CASE 
BROUGHT TO ACCOUNT AS FROM! SEO BY JERUSALEl1. STATE 
DEPARTMENT SPOHSII~ "HVLLIS OA~LEV S~ID ... 
IIASHINGiCN dDPtU lilC: ,t?ORT~ '•ILL CCN7RIBUTE TC 
ENSURING TMAT ESPIONA.E ACTIVITIES l lK~ POLLARD'S NEVER 
OCCUR AGAIII .... 11£ HiwE ALWAYS SAID \IE ARE CONCERNED 
ABOUT THE TREAll1ENT 0. THE INDIVIDUALS INVOI.VEO IN 
POLLARO' S ESPIONAGE Atti THAT THE GOVERNMENT OF ISRAEL 
UNDERTOOI( TO CALL sue. P£RSDNS TO ACCOUNT .• SOME u. s. 
OFFICIALS CIIAIIGED THA! THE ISRAEL I REPORTS AP10UNTED TO 
A 'IIIIITEIIASII' IY AVOIWIG ANY FLAT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CALLING FOi POI.ITIC.U ~ESIGNATIONS." 

11. YEOIOT 1/ASHINGTON ~OIIRESPONDENT EROL GUINEY READ 
SPOKESWOIWI OAIILEY'S l'cMARKS AS "SERVING FIRM NOTICE ON 
I $RAEL THAT TN.E U.S. i<HHES THE ISRAELIS INVOLVED IN 
THE AFFAIR TO BE PUNl,~ED." MAARIV WASHINGTON 
CORRESPONDENT OFRA YE ~'.UAH-L YTH FOUND IN O~KLEY' S 
REMARKS "OPEN IRRITAT'~N WITH THE FACT THAT THE KEY 
FIGURES IN THE POLLAR~ ~FFAIR HAVE NOT YET BEEN 
PUNISHED." 

EDT 
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PAGE 11 281181Z 
ACTION !!il:!l 

INFO LOG-88 INR-11 EUR•88 H·81 P11-18 PA-82 
SP-12 PRS·ll /833 II 

··----------------311316 281182Z /38 
0 281'143Z HAY 87 IYN 
Fl1 USIS TELAVIV 
TO UStNFO 1/ASHDC lt1t1EDIATE 
SECSTATE 1/ASHOC IMMED!ATE 
WHITEHOUSE 1/ASHDC IMMEDIATE 
NSC 1/ASHDC IHHEOIATE 
CIA 1/ASHDC 11111EDIATE 
SECDEF IIASHDCIIUSDPIASD·PA// IHl1EOIATE 
HQ USAF o/ASHDC/ / PR I Bl I I NHED i ATE 
HQOA 1/ASHDC//SASA 
DIA 1/ASHDC// 
USCINCCENT 11ACDILL AFB 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN IHHEDIATE 
AHEl1BASSY NICOSIA IMHEDIATE 
AHEl1BASSY BEIRUT IMMEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY RIYADH INHEDIATE 
USIS CAIRO 11111EDIATE 
USMISSION USUN NEIi YORN lt111EDIATE 
Al1CONSUL JERUSALEl1 I HMED I ATE 
Al1EMBASSY DAHASCUS IHMEDIATE 
ANENBASSY Al111AN IH11EDIATE 
AMEMBASSY MANAMA IMMEDIATE 
ANCONSUL JEDDAH IHNEDIATE 
AMEHBASSY KUWAIT IMHEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY LONDON INHEDIATE 
AHEMBASSY ROHE IHHEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY RABAT IHHEDIATE 

UNCLAS SECTIOH 83 OF 15 TELAVIV 87329 

STATE FOR NEA/IAI, INR, SP, P/11; R; FOR PIRC, P/F, PIP, 
P/F\I, P/FN, P/11, HA. 
NEA; ROltE ANO JERUSALElt FOR VOA; VOA NEWS/CA. 
VOA FOR 110RT SHITH; BIB FOR I/ALTER ROBERTS. 
Al1EHBASSY ROl1E FOR NFO. JERUSALElt FOR I CO GREEN. 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN FOR POLAD AMS. LANE AND PAO. 
11ACDILL FOR USIA ADVISER BRIAN BELL. 
STATE FOR NEA/IAI 1/ILCOX, NEA/P BERGER. 

E. 0. 12356: NIA 
SUBJECT: NEOIA REACTION/PRESS REVIEW, NAY 28, 1987 

111, ISRAEL RADIO AND PRESS FEATURED ANBASSADOR 
PICKERING'S REMARKS AT BAR-ILAN UNIVERSITY THAT "THE 
111PACT ON OUR RELATIONSHIP IN HY VIEi/ HAS BEEN HORE IN 
ITS POTENTIAL, AND ·1 USE THAT I/ORD VERY CAREFlJLLY, TO 
ERODE THE LONG-TERM POPULAR SUPPORT IN THE U.S. FOR 
ISRAEL, THAii IT HAS BEEN AN lltPACT ON OUR DAILY WORKING 
RELATIONSHIPS, IIHICH HAVE CONTINUED." 
IV. JERUSALEM POST DIPLOltATIC CORRESPONDENT BENNY 
110RRIS WROTE: "ISRAEL HAS NO INTENTION OF GIVING THE 
U.S. A COPY OF THE 45-PAGE SECRET SECT I ON OF THE 
ROTENSTREICH-TZUR REPORT ON THE POLLARD AFFAIR, :;ENIOR 
GOVERNMENT SOURCES INDICATED YESTERDAY. COHING ON TOP 
OF THE BLAND NATURE OF THE REPORT'S F INOINGS ANO OF THE 
ABSENCE OF ANY DEMAND FOR PERSONAL ~CCOUNT~BILITY IN 
EITHER THE ROTENSTREICH-TZUR OR THE KNESSET 
SUBCOMMITTEE'S REPORT ON POLLARD, TH IS REFUSAL It I GH T 
OPEN A NEIi AREA OF DI SAGREEltEHl BETIIEEII THE Tl/0 
GOVERN"ENTS , ... IT IS.UNDERSTOOD THAT THE GOVERNMENT 
WILL ALSO NOT PERltlT THE TRAHSFER TO THE U.S. OF THE 
SECRET ANNEXES, ST I LL UNCOMPLETE11, OF THE MESSET 
COHHI TTEE REPORT .... COMMf.TTEE HEAD ABBA EBAN 
YESTERDAY SAID FLATLY THAT THE SECRET SECTIONS OF HIS 
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COHHITTEE'S REPORT 1/0ULD 'ABSOLUTELY NOT' BE GIVEN TO 
THE U.S." 

V. HA'ARETZ CDITOIIIAL SAID: "THE EBAN COMHITTEE 
REFRAINED FROl1 RECONMENDING THAT SHAHIR, PERES, RABIN 
AND ARENS DUii IIIIAT \IE CALL 'PERSO~AL CON Cl US IONS' FROH 
THE POLLARD PROBE REPORT. HOWEVER, ANYONE LOOKING 
CAREFULLY AT TME FINDINGS CAN H}VE NO DOUBT THAT, IF 
THE TERN 'Pl!NISTERl~L RES~ONSIBILITY' MEAN'i ANYTHING, 
All FOUR NUST RESIGN. THOSE I/HO FAILED TO CONTROL THE 
SYSTEltS UNDER Tll£1R SUPERVISION CANNOT BE TRUSTED TO 
RUN THE AFFAIRS Of THE STATE; All THE l'IORE SO AS THE 
POLL ARD SCJIIDAL IS JU:;_T ONE IN A SER I ES OF FI AS COS, 
FROH THE lii'III aitr.: DEAL ro TriE CONUCT:; ,If TH THE 
CONTRAS ANO TB[ LAVI. THE POLLARD QUARlET .•. EVEN 
HAN AGED TO !US UP ISRAEL I •AMER I CAN RELATIONS BY NOT 
HONORING All TR£ PROMISES THEY GAVE WASHINGTON AND BY 
EMBARRASSING IIIIERICAN JEWRY ...• THEIR RESIGNATION IS 
ESSENTIAL TO IEIIE;DY Bll~TERAL RELATIONS," 
VI. DAVAR EDITORIAL SAID:, "OUR CABINET ATTACHES NO 
PRACTICAL 11EMIIG 1/HATSOEVER TO THE RECOHMENDAT I ON THAT 
IT ACCEPT RESl'tlllSIIILITY FOR THE POLLARD AFFAIR. ITS 
ADl11SSION OF GUILT IS A REPETITION OF THE OLD RHETORIC 
WE HAVE BECOIE ACCUSTOMED TO. tNJOY I NG AN UNSHAKEABLE 
KNESSET HAJQRITY, THE GOVERNIIENT CAN DO OR ltOT 00 
WHATEVER IT PLEAS[S .. .. THUS, IT CAN AFFORD TO HAVE NO 
SCRUPLES ABOUT TN£ FATE OF THOSE WHO OPERATED POLLARD, 
AS I/Ell AS AICIUT SiRIPPING THE TERH OF HIN\STERIAL 
ACCOUNT AB IL I TY OF ANY ME AN I NG .. .. Al THOUGH TH IS 
QUARREl·INFESTED GOVERNMENT MANAGED TO EHERGE FROlt THE 
POLLARD AFFAIR IN 011£ PIECE, ANO MIGHT YET SUCCEED IN • 
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PAGE 81 2811S22 
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INFO LOG-Sil INR-18 EUR-SS H-111 PH-18 PA-ll2 
SP-82 PRS-81 /833 W 

·········-·-------311334 281183Z /38 
0 281l143Z 11AY 87 ZYN 
FH USIS TELAVIV 
TO USINFO WASHOC IMMEDIATE 
SECSTATE VASHDC !MMEOIATE 
WHITE HOUSE WASH DC I l1l1ED I ATE 
NSC VASHOC IHMEOIATE 
CIA WASHOC IHHEDIATE 
SECDEF VASHOC//USDP/A"O-PA// IMMEDIATE 
HQ USAF W~SHDC1/PRl8// IMMEDIATE 
HODA WASHDC//SASA 
DI A WAS HOC// • 
USCINCCENT MACDILL AFB 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN IMMEDIATE 
AMEHBASSY NICOSIA IMMEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY BEIRUT IHHEDIATE 
AMEHBASSY RIYADH IMMEDIATE 
USIS CAIRO IHHEDIATE 
USHISSION USUN NEW YORK IMHEDIATE 
AHCONSUL JERUSALEH IMMEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY DAHASCUS 111HEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY AHHAN IHHEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY HANAHA IHH[DIATE 
AHCONSUL JEDDAH IHHEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY KUWAIT IHHEDIATE 
AHEMBASSY LONDON IHHEDIATE 
AHEHBASSY ROME IHl1EDtATE 
AHEMBASSY RABAT IHMEDIATE 

UNCLAS SECTION 84 OF es TELAYIV 87329 

STATE FOR NEA/IAI, INR, SP, PIM; R; FOR PIRC, P/F, PIP, 
P/FW, P/FN, Pl.I'!, HA. 
NEA; ROHE ANO JERUSALEH FOR VOA; YOA NEWS/CA. 
ijOA FOR HORT SHITH; BIB FOR WALTER ROBERTS.· 
AHEHBASSY ROME FOP. 11FO. JERUSALEH FOR rec GREEN. 
USCIIICEUR VAIHINGEN FOR POLAD AHB. LANE AIID PAO. 
11ACDILL FOR USIA ADVISER BRIAN BELL, 
STATE FOR NEA/IAI WILCOX, NEA/P BERGER. 

E.O. 123S6: NIA 
SUBJECT: HEDIA REACTION/PRESS REVIEW, HAY 28, 1987 

STICKING TOGETHER FOR DAYS AND HONTHS TD COHE, IT HAS 
OUTLIVED ITS USEFULNESS." 

VII. A JERUSALEM PO~T EDITORIAL SAID: "THE 
ROTENSTREICH·TZUR REPORT, THOUGH AUTHORED SY A 
DI STI NGU I SHED JURIST AND A FORHER CH I EF OF GENERAL 
STAFF, IS LITTLE BETTER THAN ANODYNE WHITEWASH. THE 
SO-CALLED EBAN REPORT IS IN LARGE HEASUR[ A LIVELY BUT 
STERILE DEBATE, HOSTLY ALONG LIKUD/LABOR L_INES, AHONG 
THE PANEL MEHBERS. NEITHER DOCUMENT IS LIKELY TO HAVE 
IIORE THAN A IIINll!Al IIIPACT ON THE STRUCTURE OF POLITICS 
IN ISRAEL AT THIS TINE, OR ON THE ABILITY OF THE 
POLITICAL ECHELON TD SET THE EXECUTIVE HOUSE °IN ORDER 
.... THE MORAL IS THAT, SO LONG AS THE 11AJOR-PARTY 
LEADERS ~AVE A MUTUAL STAKE IN STICKING TOGETHER, THERE 
IS NOTHING THE KNESSET, ESPECIALLY THROUGH A 
SUBCOMHITTEE, CAN DO TO SHAKE OR.CHANGE THEM NO MATTER 
HOW GREAT THE PROVOCATION NOR HOW GREAT THE 
HI SHANAGEHENT OF GOVERNIIENT. "· 

VI 11. ISRAEL RADIO POLITICAL CORRESPONOE·NT ODED BEN-AHi 
COIIHENTED: "THIS AFFAIR IS NOT GOING TO BE A HEDIA 
EVENT FOR "UC~ LONGER. WE'O BETTER START LOOKING 
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ORVARD TO THE NEXT SCANDAL. THE PROBE PANELS \IERE 
ESSENTIALLY SET UP TO APPEASE THE AMERICANS, BUT IT 
APPEARS THAT IIE'RE TAKING THE AFFAIR MUCH MORE 
SERIOUSLY THAN THE ~EOPLE ACROSS THE OCEAN. 
DOHESTICALLY, WE HAY HAVE A LITHE MORE OF THE OLD 
PARTISAN SWORD CROSolNG AMO THAT'S IT." 
IL THE WEEKLY HEWS HAGAZINE KOTERET RASHIT WROTE: 
"ONCE IT BECAME CLEAR THAT BOTH ~IKUO ~ND LABOR SHARE 
THE BL.~HE FOR THE POLLARO F ! ASCO, THE DANGER OF ANY 
POLITICAL LEADER BEING PERSONALLY AFFECTED BY THE 
AFFAIR NOTICEABLY DECREASED, THAT IS INCIDENTALLY WHAT 
HAPPENED IN THE GSS SCANDAL IIN WHICH THE CABINET 
RESOLVED TO BE VERY LENIENT WITH TOP INTELLIGENCE 
OFFICIAL• ACCUSED OF ?ERJURVi. iHE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 
THE TWO AFFAIRS, KOi/EVER, IS THAT IN THE POLLARO CASE A 
PARTNER HORE SENSITIVE ANO POI/ERFUL THAN ISRAELI PUBLIC 
OPINION IS BREATHING DOIIN THE GOl'S NECK. THE U.S. 
ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC, AS I/Eli. AS THE AMERICAN 
JEWISH COHHUNITY, ME NOT GOING TO LIKE INQUIRIES THAT 
HAKE DO WITH ONLY BROWBEATING AND KNUCKLE RAPPING.• 

2. I NTERNATI ONAl P£ACE CONFERENCE: 

JERUSALEH POST DIPLOMATIC CORRESPONDENT BENNY MORRIS 
WROTE IN AN EDITORIAL PAGE ANALYSIS: "ISRAEL, FAR MORE 
THAN THE SOVIETS, NEEDS HIDDLE EAST ·PEACE (FOR ISRAEL 
IT IS AN EXISTENTIAL IHPERATIVEI, AND ... THoRE IS 
THOROUGH SYllll[TRY BETWEEN ISRAEL I AND SOVIET 
PARTICIPATION IN THE CONFERENCE. BRIEFLY PUT, THAT 
SYHHETRY HEAIIS TRAT THERE WI LL BE NO INTERNATIONAL 
CONFERENCE IF THE SOVIETS DON'T PARTICIPATE JUST AS 

EOT 
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INFO LOG-00 INR-10 EUR-00 H-01 PM-10 PA-02 
SP-02 PRS-0I /033 W 

~~~~~-------~-----311354 28ll04Z /38 
0 28!043Z MAY 87 ZYN 
FM USIS TELAVIV 
TO USINFO WASHOC IMMEOIATE 
SECSTATE WASHOC IMMEDIATE 
WHITEHOUSE WASHDC IMMEDIATE 
NSC WASHDC IMMEDIATE 
CIA WASHDC IMMEDIATE 
SECDEF WASHOC//USOP/ASO-PA// 'IMMEDIATE 
HQ USAF WASHDC//PRIB// IMMEDIATE 
HODA WASHDC//SASA 
DIA WASHDC,, 
USCINCCENT MACDILL AFB 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY NICOSIA IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY BEIRUT IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY RIYADH IMMEDIATE 
USIS CAIRO IMMEDIATE 
USMISSION USUN NEW YORK IMMEDIATE 
AMCONSUL JERUSALEM IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY DAMASCUS IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY AMMAN IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY MANAMA IMMEDIATE 
AMCONSUL JEOOAH IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY KUWAIT IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY LONDON IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY ROME IMMEDIATE 
AMEMBASSY RABAT IMMEDIATE 

UNCLAS SECTION 05 OF 05 TELAVIV 07329 

STATE FOR NEA/IAI, INR, SP, P/M; R; FOR P/RC, P.IF, P/'1'. 
P/F~ P/FN, P/M, HA. 
NEA; ROME ANO JERUSALEM FOR VOA; VOA NEWS/CA. 
VOA FOR MORT SMITH; B I·B FOR WALTER ROBERTS. 
AMEMBASSY ROME FOR MFO. JERUSALEM FOR I CD GREEN. 
USCINCEUR VAIHINGEN FOR POL AO •AMB. LANE ANO PAO. 
MACOILL FOR USIA ADVISER BRIAN BELL. 
STATE FOR NEA/IAI WI,LCOX, NEA/P BERGE~. 

E. O. I2351Si N/A 
SUBJECTr ~EDIA REACTION/PRESS REVIEW, MAY 28, 1987 

THERE WON'T BE A CONFERENCE IF ISRAEL DOESN'T SHOW UP. 
FOR IF THE SOVIETS DON'T PARTICIPATE, NEITHER WILL 
JORDAN AND SYRIA - MEANING, NO CONFERENCE. IF ISRAEL 
OOESN' T PARTICIPATE, NEITHER WILL THE U.S. ~ MEANING, 
NO CONFERENCE .. , , THE KEY TO PROGRESS NOW PROBABLY 
LIES IN MOSCOW, NOT IN EUROPE .... IT IS FAR TOO EARL': 
TO WRITE OFF THE INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE PROCESS, ANu: 
THE SIGHS OF RELIEF IN THE LIKUO, AUDIBLE THROUGHOUT 
THE LANO IN THE DAYS AFTER THE INNER CABINET MEETING, 
ARE PROBABLY.PREMATURE. 

MINIMIZE CONSIDERED FOR B"EIRUT. LANE 
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